

Section I
**Notice of Development of Proposed Rules
and Negotiated Rulemaking**

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL
REGULATION**

Board of Landscape Architecture

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61G10-12.002 Fees

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes the amendment of the rule to update language due to HB 1193 enacted in 2020.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Fees.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 455.219(6), 455.271, 481.306, 481.307 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.219(6), 455.271, 481.307 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Ruthanne Christie, Executive Director, Board of Landscape Architecture, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0751. Ruthanne.Christie@myfloridalicense.com.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL
REGULATION**

Board of Accountancy

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61H1-20.0093 Rules of the Auditor General

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes a rule amendment to incorporate by reference the newest version of the rules of the Auditor General.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The newest version of the Auditor General will be incorporated.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 473.304, 473.315 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 473.315 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Roger

Scarborough, Division Director, Board of Accountancy, 240 NW 76th Dr., Suite A, Gainesville, Florida 32607, Roger.Scarborough@myfloridalicense.com.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Nursing Home Administrators

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

64B10-13.200 Inactive Status and Renewal of Inactive License

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes a rule amendment to update the rule language.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The rule language.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 468.1725 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 456.036, 456.038(2), 468.1725 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Board of Nursing Home Administrators, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257, Anthony.Spivey@flhealth.gov.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

Section II
Proposed Rules

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL
REGULATION**

Board of Landscape Architecture

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

61G10-11.003 Examination Review Procedure

61G10-11.0035 Exemption of Spouses of Members of Armed Forces from Licensure Renewal Provisions

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to repeal the rules because they are unnecessary.

SUMMARY: The rules will be repealed because they are unnecessary.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 455.02(2), 455.217(2), 481.306 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.02(2), 455.217(2) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Ruthanne Christie, Executive Director, Board of Landscape Architecture, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0751; Ruthanne.Christie@myfloridalicense.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G10-11.003 Examination Review Procedure.

Rulemaking Authority 455.217(2), 481.306 FS. Law Implemented 455.217(2) FS. History—New 2-4-80, Amended 6-20-85, Formerly 21K-11.03, Amended 3-13-89, 5-30-91, Formerly 21K-11.003, Repealed.

61G10-11.0035 Exemption of Spouses of Members of Armed Forces from Licensure Renewal Provisions.

Rulemaking Authority 455.02(2) FS. Law Implemented 455.02(2) FS. History—New 8-10-04, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Landscape Architecture

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Landscape Architecture

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 13, 2020

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Landscape Architecture

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61G10-18.004 Evaluations of Providers

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to repeal the rule because it is unnecessary.

SUMMARY: The rule will be repealed because it is unnecessary.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 481.306, 481.313 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 481.313 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Ruthanne Christie, Executive Director, Board of Landscape Architecture, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0751; Ruthanne.Christie@myfloridalicense.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G10-18.004 Evaluations of Providers.

Rulemaking Specific Authority 481.306, 481.313 FS. Law Implemented 481.313 FS. History—New 9-19-01, Repealed.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Board of Landscape Architecture

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Landscape Architecture
 DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 13, 2020

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
62-640.100	Scope, Intent, Purpose, and Applicability
62-640.200	Definitions
62-640.210	General Technical Guidance and Forms
62-640.300	General Requirements
62-640.400	Prohibitions
62-640.500	Nutrient Management Plan (NMP)
62-640.600	Pathogen Reduction and Vector Attraction Reduction
62-640.650	Monitoring, Record Keeping, Reporting, and Notification
62-640.700	Requirements for Land Application of Class AA, A, and B Biosolids
62-640.800	Additional Requirements for Land Application at Reclamation Sites
62-640.850	Distribution and Marketing of - Class AA Biosolids
62-640.880	Additional Requirements Related to Biosolids Treatment Facilities

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department is developing amendments to Chapter 62-640, F.A.C., to ensure the proper management, use and land application of biosolids to protect waters of the state from nutrient pollution and in a manner that minimizes the migration of nutrients to prevent the impairment of waterbodies. The Department is proposing to amend the permitting rules to establish the rate of biosolids application based on biosolids characteristics and site-specific conditions, such as soil characteristics, water table, hydrogeology, site use, distance to surface water, in order to prevent nutrient pollution offsite. The rule revisions would allow the Department to better evaluate phosphorus characteristics in all biosolids to inform decisions as to the appropriate application rate; and will establish criteria for low, medium and high-risk sites that guide application practices and required water quality monitoring. Rule revisions would also require site specific groundwater and/or surface water monitoring plans to detect nutrient migration.

SUMMARY: Proposed amendments to Florida Administrative Code Chapter 62-640, F.A.C., entitled Biosolids, which regulates and ensures the proper management, use and land application of biosolids to protect public health and the environment, were developed to revise the monitoring and permitting criteria for the land application and management of biosolids, address the deliberations of the Biosolids Technical Advisory Committee, and implement provisions of Chapter 2020-150, Laws of Florida.

OTHER RULES INCORPORATING THESE RULES: 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296.320, 62-297, 62-160.120, 62-160.300, 62-302.300, 62-600.200, 62-600.550, 62-600.740, 62-699.200, 62-625.100, 62-625.420, 62-709.300, 62-610.300, 62-620.200, 62-620.310, 62-620.630, 62-340.700, 62-610.300, 62-620.310, 62-620.630, 62-520.600, 62-532.200, 62-550.200, 62-540.650, 62-620.325, 62-620.610, 62-701, 62-602, 62-4.050, and 62-110, F.A.C.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION: The agency has determined that this rule will have an impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory cost in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after implementation of the rule. A SERC has been prepared by the agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY (formerly "Specific Authority"): 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707, F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708, F.S.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD BEFORE THE ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION COMMISSION AT A TIME, DATE, AND PLACE THAT WILL BE NOTICED IN A FUTURE VOLUME OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Maurice Barker, Senior Program Analyst, Division of Water Resource Management, (850)245-8614 or by email at Maurice.Barker@floridadep.gov.

If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by using the Florida Relay Service, 1 (800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1 (800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Maurice Barker, Senior Program Analyst, Division of Water Resource Management, MS 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399, (850)245-8614 or by email at Maurice.Barker@floridadep.gov.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

62-640.100 Scope, Intent, Purpose, and Applicability.

(1) No change.

(2) This chapter establishes minimum requirements for biosolids which are to be applied to land for agricultural purposes, distributed and marketed, or used for land reclamation. Included are biosolids which are composted composite with yard trash, wood chips, or similar bulking agents and ultimately applied to land or distributed and marketed.

(3) through (4) No change.

(5) Applicability.

(a) though (b) No change.

(c) Unless specifically provided otherwise in this chapter, requirements in this chapter shall apply to all septage management facilities that ~~treat more than 10,000 gallons per day monthly average daily flow or more than 20,000 gallons in a single day, and that~~ apply septage to agricultural sites or reclamation sites. Requirements in this chapter shall also apply to applicers of septage, and to operators or owners of an agricultural site or reclamation site which receive septage from facilities permitted under this chapter.

(d) through (e) No change.

(f) Unless specifically provided otherwise in this chapter, facilities and biosolids application sites ~~Facilities which have submitted a complete wastewater permit application, or which have received an initial permit before August 29, 2010, are considered to be existing facilities and shall meet the requirements of this chapter in accordance with paragraphs (g) and (h), below.~~

(g) New or renewed facility or biosolids land application site permits issued after July 1, 2020, shall meet the requirements of this chapter no later than within one year of (effective date of the rule).

~~(g) Unless specifically provided otherwise in this chapter, existing facilities in Florida shall comply with the requirements of this chapter at the time of renewal of the wastewater permit. To facilitate the transition to land application site permits, for those wastewater facility permits renewed between August 29, 2010 and January 1, 2013, the Department shall include compliance schedules to achieve compliance with the land application site permitting requirements included in Rules 62-640.300, 62-640.500, 62-640.650, 62-640.700, F.A.C., by no later than January 1, 2013. Any such renewed permits shall contain conditions for the land application of biosolids based on the provisions of Chapter 62-640, F.A.C., as amended on 3-30-98, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, during the period of the compliance schedule. A copy of Chapter 62-640, F.A.C., as amended on 3-30-98, is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road,~~

~~Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, or any of the Department's District Offices.~~

(h) All permits for facilities and biosolids land application sites shall meet the requirements of this chapter within two years of (effective date of the rule).

~~(h) Regardless of paragraph (g), above, no later than January 1, 2013, all facilities that land apply biosolids shall use permitted application sites.~~

~~(i) After an application site is permitted, management and application of biosolids at the site shall be in accordance with the application site permit, which supersedes the site management and application requirements of any existing facility permits.~~

~~(i)(i) Biosolids or biosolids products which are generated outside of Florida but imported to Florida are subject to the provisions of this chapter beginning August 29, 2010.~~

~~(j)(k) No change.~~

(6) Other Applicable Rules and Requirements.

(a) The land application of biosolids shall be consistent with the applicable requirements of Section 373.811(4), F.S., the applicable requirements of basin management action plans (BMAPs) adopted pursuant to Section 403.067(7), F.S., and with the applicable requirements of reasonable assurance plans (RAPs) adopted in accordance with Section 403.067(4), F.S., and Rule 62-303.600, F.A.C.

~~(a) Septage management facilities that treat 10,000 gallons per day or less on a monthly average daily flow basis and no more than 20,000 gallons in a single day are regulated by the Department of Health in accordance with Chapter 64E-6, F.A.C. Land application of septage treated by these facilities is also regulated by the Department of Health in accordance with Chapter 64E-6, F.A.C.~~

(b) through (h) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.100, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10, _____.

62-640.200 Definitions.

Terms used in this chapter shall have the meaning specified below. The meaning of any term not defined below may be taken from definitions in other rules of the Department.

(1) through (5) No change.

(6) "Biosolids" means the solid, semisolid, or liquid residue generated during the treatment of domestic wastewater in a domestic wastewater treatment facility, formerly known as "domestic wastewater residuals" or "residuals." Not included is the treated effluent or reclaimed water from a domestic wastewater treatment plant. Also not included are solids removed from pump stations and lift stations, screenings and grit removed from the preliminary treatment components of

domestic wastewater treatment facilities, other solids as defined in subsection ~~62-640.200(30)~~ ~~62-640.200(31)~~, F.A.C., and ash generated during the incineration of biosolids. Biosolids include products and treated material from biosolids treatment facilities and septage management facilities regulated by the Department.

(7) through (8) No change.

(9) “Capacity Index” means a measure of the capacity of soil to store phosphorus which is determined using soil test Mehlich-3 extraction results for phosphorus, iron, and aluminum in the following equation (units for the capacity index (CI) and for soil test results are mg/kg).

$$\text{Capacity Index (CI)} = \left[0.1 - \frac{\frac{\text{SoilTestP}}{31}}{\frac{\text{SoilTestFe}}{56} + \frac{\text{SoilTestAl}}{27}} \right] * \left[\frac{\text{SoilTestFe}}{56} + \frac{\text{SoilTestAl}}{27} \right] * 31$$

(9) through (17) renumbered (10) through (18) No change.

(18) “Existing application site” means a site approved for land application or land reclamation in a wastewater facility permit active on August 29, 2010 or included in a complete permit application submitted before August 29, 2010.

(19) through (27) No change.

(28) “Liquid biosolids” means any biosolids that are less than 12% solids by weight, or that are determined to contain free liquids as defined by Method 9095B (Paint Filter Liquids Test), November 2004, as described in “Test Methods for Evaluating Solid Wastes, Physical/Chemical Methods” (EPA Pub. No. SW-846), January 3, 2008, 73 FR 486, which is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, and is available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>, and from the ~~Department of Environmental Protection, Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department’s District Offices.~~

(29) through (32) No change.

(33) “Percent Water Extractable Phosphorus” (PWEP) means the percentage of phosphorus that is water extractable in a biosolids sample. PWEP is equal to the monitoring results of water extractable phosphorus (WEP) divided by total phosphorus (TP), with the values of WEP and TP in the same units, and multiplied by 100.

(34)(33) No change.

(35)(34) “pH” means as defined in Rule 62-600.200, F.A.C., except for the purposes of Pathogen Reduction and Vector Attraction Reduction under Rule 62-640.600, F.A.C., for which “pH” means the logarithm of the reciprocal of the hydrogen ion concentration measured at 25 degrees Centigrade (i.e. Celsius) or measured at another temperature and then converted to an equivalent value at 25 degrees Centigrade.

(35) through (40) renumbered (36) through (41) No change.

(42) “Seasonal high water” means the elevation to which the ground and surface water may be expected to rise due to a normal wet season.

(43)(41) No change.

(44)(42) “Septage management facility” means a stationary facility that treats only domestic septage or combinations of domestic septage, food establishment sludges, wastes removed from portable toilets, and wastes removed from holding tanks associated with boats, marinas, and onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems, before use or land application. ~~Septage management facilities that are regulated by the Department are as described in paragraph 62-640.100(5)(c), F.A.C.~~

(43) through (48) renumbered (45) through (50) No change.

(51)(49) “Water table” means the upper surface of the zone of saturation where the body of ground water is not confined by an overlying impermeable zone groundwater pressures are equal to atmospheric pressure, except where that surface is formed by an impermeable stratum.

(50) through (51) renumbered (52) through (53) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, ~~403.0855~~, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, ~~403.0855~~, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.200, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10, ____.

62-640.210 General Technical Guidance and Forms.

(1) Unless specifically referenced elsewhere in this chapter, the following publications are listed for informational purposes as technical guidance to assist facilities, applicers, distributors and marketers, site managers, and site owners in meeting the requirements of this chapter. Publications or portions of publications containing enforceable criteria are specifically referenced elsewhere in this chapter. Information in the publications listed below does not supersede the specific requirements of this chapter. Members of the public may request and obtain copies of the publications listed below by contacting the appropriate publisher at the address indicated. Copies of the publications are ~~on file and available from the for review during normal business hours at the Department of Environmental Protection, Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545 Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 and in the Department’s district and branch offices.~~

(a) No change.

(b) Title 40, Code of Federal Regulations, ~~Protection of Environment, 1993, Part 503, “Standards for the Use and Disposal of Sewage Sludge,” codified as of July 1, 2018 revised as of April 9, 2007 and effective on April 25, 2007,~~ www.gpoaccess.gov/cfr/index.html.

(c) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 1989, *POTW Sludge Sampling and Analysis Guidance Document*, EPA Center for Environmental Research Information, 26 West Martin Luther King Drive, Cincinnati, Ohio 45268, www.epa.gov.

(d) through (k) renumbered (c) through (j) No change.

(k)(4) USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service, 2012 1999, "General Manual, Title 190, Part 402 – Nutrient Management," USDA-NRCS, Washington, DC, www.nrcs.usda.gov/technical.

(l)(m) USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service – Florida, 2012 2007, "Field Office Technical Guide – Nutrient Management, Code 590", USDA-NRCS-FL, Gainesville, Florida, www.fl.nrcs.usda.gov/technical.

(m)(n) USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service – Florida, 2018 2004, "Field Office Technical Guide – Waste Recycling Utilization, Code 633," USDA-NRCS-FL, Gainesville, Florida, www.fl.nrcs.usda.gov/technical.

(n) Kleinman, P., D. Sullivan, A. Wolf, R. Brandt, Z. Dou, H. Elliott, J. Kovar, A. Leytem, R. Maguire, P. Moore, L. Saporito, A. Sharpley, A. Shoher, T. Sims, J. Toth, G. Toor, H. Zhang, T. Zhang. 2007. "Selection of a Water Extractable Phosphorus Test for Manures and Biosolids as an Indicator of Runoff Loss Potential." *Journal of Environmental Quality* 36: 1357-1367, <https://dl.sciencesocieties.org/publications/jeq>

(o) Mylavarapu, R., T. Obreza, K. Morgan, G. Hochmuth, V. Nair, and A. Wright, 2014, "Extraction of Soil Nutrients Using Mehlich-3 Reagent for Acid-Mineral Soils of Florida." *UF/IFAS Document SL 407*, <https://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/ss620> or should it be <https://edis.ifas.ufl.edu>.

(e) Kidder, G. and R.D. Rhue, 2003, "Soil Testing," *UF/IFAS Circular 239*, <http://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/SS156>.

(p) Mylavarapu, R.S. and E.D. Kennelley, 2009, "Extension Soil Testing Laboratory (ESTL) Analytical Procedure and Training Manual," *UF/IFAS Circular 1248*, <http://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/SS312>.

(2) Forms. The forms and instructions used by the Department are listed in this rule. The rule numbers are the same as the form numbers. Copies of these forms and instructions may be obtained by contacting the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, writing to the Bureau of Wastewater Facilities, M.S. 3535, Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. In addition, these forms are available online at <https://floridadep.gov/water/domestic-wastewater/content/domestic-wastewater-forms>, or at the webpages provided below for each form the Department's District Offices and from the web site for the Department's Division of Water Resource Management at www.dep.state.fl.us/water. The monitoring information reported on the forms listed below may be submitted in another

format, such as electronic, if requested by the permittee and if approved by the Department as being compatible with data entry into the Department's computer system. The Department hereby adopts and incorporates by reference in this section the following forms and instructions:

(a) Treatment Facility Biosolids Plan, Form 62-640.210(2)(a), effective (effective date of the rule) August 29, 2010, _____ available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>.

(b) Treatment Facility Biosolids Annual Summary, Form 62-640.210(2)(b), effective (effective date of the rule) August 29, 2010, _____ available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>.

(c) Biosolids Application Site Annual Summary, Form 62-640.210(2)(c), effective (effective date of the rule) August 29, 2010, _____ available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>.

(d) Biosolids Site Permit Application, Form 62-640.210(2)(d), effective (effective date of the rule) August 29, 2010, _____ available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>.

(e) Biosolids Application Site Log, Form 62-640.210(2)(e), effective (effective date of the rule) August 29, 2010, _____ available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.210, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10, _____.

62-640.300 General Requirements.

(1) Facilities that receive or generate biosolids shall have a valid Department permit prior to treatment, land application, distribution and marketing, or disposal of biosolids. Treatment Facility permits shall specify the use or disposal of the facility's biosolids. Biosolids shall be managed in accordance with the facility permit and the requirements of this chapter.

(2) Treatment Facility Permit for Facilities that Land Apply Biosolids.

(a) No change.

(b) The Treatment Facility Biosolids Plan, Form 62-640.210(2)(a), effective August 29, 2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, shall be submitted with the permit application to identify sites where the facility's biosolids are permitted to be land applied. This form is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic

~~Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 2400 or any of the Department's District Offices.~~

(c) No change.

(3) Biosolids Land Application Site Permit.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Applicants for a permitted biosolids application site shall submit the Biosolids Site Permit Application, Form 62-640.210(2)(d), ~~effective August 29, 2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference,~~ the applicable fee, and supporting documentation to the appropriate District Office of the Department or delegated local program responsible for the geographic area in which the application site is located. ~~This form is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 2400 or any of the Department's District Offices.~~

1. through 2. No change.

(d) All biosolids application site permit applications shall be considered projects of heightened public interest in accordance with subsection 62-110.106(6), F.A.C., and subparagraph 62-110.106(7)(a)1., F.A.C.

~~(e)(d)~~ No change.

~~(f)(e) New application sites shall be permitted prior to use. Existing application sites shall be permitted prior to applying biosolids from facilities required to use a permitted site in accordance with subsection 62-640.300(2), F.A.C. All existing application sites shall be permitted no later than January 1, 2013.~~

(g) All permitted biosolids land application sites shall be enrolled in the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (FDACS) best management practices (BMP) program or be within an agricultural operation enrolled in the program for the applicable commodity type.

(4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.300, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10, _____.

62-640.400 Prohibitions.

(1) through (13) No change.

(14) Biosolids shall not be applied on soils that have a seasonal high water table less than 6 inches from the soil surface or within 6 inches of the intended depth of biosolids placement, unless a Department-approved nutrient management plan and water quality monitoring plan provide reasonable assurance that the land application of biosolids at the site will not cause or contribute to a violation of the state's surface water quality standards or ground water quality standards.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.400, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10, _____.

62-640.500 Nutrient Management Plan (NMP).

(1) A site-specific NMP shall be submitted to the Department with the permit application for an agricultural site. For sites enrolled and participating in a Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (FDACS) Best Management Practices (BMP) program, a conservation plan or NMP prepared for the purposes of the BMP can be submitted as the site-specific NMP if the plan meets the NMP requirements given in subsections (4) through ~~(7)(8)~~, below.

(2) USDA-NRCS-Florida Field Office Technical Guide – Nutrient Management, Code 590, November 2012 ~~September 2007~~, listed in paragraph ~~62-640.210(1)(l)~~ 62-640.210(1)(m), F.A.C., ~~is available to~~ provides ~~provide~~ technical guidance in the preparation of NMPs ~~from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 2400 or any of the Department's District Offices.~~

(3) through (4) No change.

(5) The NMP shall meet the requirements of this chapter and shall:

(a) Include aerial site photograph(s)/imagery or site map(s), and a soil survey map of the site;

(b) No change.

(c) Include a description of how the NMP complies with any applicable basin management action plans (BMAPs) adopted under Section 403.067(7), F.S., and with any applicable reasonable assurance plans (RAPs) adopted under Section 403.067(4), F.S.

~~(d)(e)~~ No change.

~~(e)(d)~~ Specify ~~Identify~~ the frequency interval for soil fertility testing. The interval shall be at least once annually ~~every five years with consideration for more frequent testing if increases in soil phosphorus levels are expected;~~

(f) Establish specific rates of application of biosolids based on nitrogen and phosphorus as well as procedures to land apply biosolids and all other nutrient sources to each application zone. The NMP shall address application rates for the period covered by the effective and expiration dates of the biosolids site permit, at a minimum. The final rate of biosolids to be applied to an application zone shall be not exceed the nitrogen-based rate and the phosphorus-based rate (the application rate shall not exceed the more restrictive of the two nutrient-based rates). The applicant may exceed the phosphorus-based rate if the applicant demonstrates the zone is comprised of native phosphatic soils and that applying at a higher rate is protective of water quality.

As part of establishing the nitrogen and phosphorus-based application rates, the NMP shall include the following items.

1. The NMP shall identify the recommended crop nutrient needs for nitrogen and phosphorus (i.e. crop nutrient demand) for the crops to be grown on each application zone based on University of Florida Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences (IFAS) recommendations or using the following values as a guide,

Crop	Nitrogen: lbs/acre/growing season	Phosphorus (P ₂ O ₅): lbs/acre/growing season
Improved perennial grasses (i.e.maintenance fertilization of established pastures) - Grazed	160	40
Improved perennial grasses (i.e.maintenance fertilization of established hayfields) – Hay or silage (assuming 4 harvests)	320	80
Cool season annual grasses (e.g. grazed small grains, ryegrass, fescue)	160	80
Warm season annual grasses (e.g. sorghum-sudan hybrid or pearl millet) - Grazed	160	40
Warm season annual grasses (e.g. sorghum-sudan hybrid or pearl millet) - Hay or silage (4 harvests)	320	80

2. The NMP shall identify the current and planned plant production sequence or crop rotation for each application zone for the period of the biosolids site permit, at a minimum.

3. The NMP shall include realistic annual yield goals for each crop identified for each application zone, if applicable.

4. The NMP shall include the soil phosphorus storage “capacity index” (CI) and soil phosphorus results from the most recent soil fertility testing for each application zone. The CI and soil phosphorus results shall be based on Mehlich-3 extraction results for phosphorus, iron, and aluminum.

5. The NMP shall include a listing and quantification of all nutrient sources for each application zone.

6. The NMP shall include the percent water extractable phosphorus (PWE) of each anticipated biosolids source (permittees may use a weighted average or estimated weighted average when biosolids applied to an application zone will be from multiple sources),

7. The crop nutrient demand phosphorus may be adjusted as given in a. and b. below, based on the soil phosphorus storage capacity index and the biosolids percent water extractable phosphorus (PWE) when determining biosolids application rates. The adjustment to the crop nutrient demand phosphorus results in the amount of total phosphorus in lbs/acre that can be applied from biosolids (e.g., if doubling is allowed, a crop nutrient demand of 40 lbs P₂O₅/acre/year results in an allowed loading of 80 lbs total P₂O₅/acre/year).

a. When the PWE of biosolids is less than 14%, one of the following may be used:

(I) When the soil phosphorus storage capacity index for an application zone is greater than 40 mg/kg, the PWE value for the biosolids being applied may be used to adjust the crop nutrient demand phosphorus by dividing the crop nutrient demand phosphorus by the PWE (in decimal form) to determine the total amount of phosphorus allowed to be applied.

(II) When the soil phosphorus storage capacity index is at least 20 mg/kg and up to 40 mg/kg, the amount of crop nutrient demand phosphorus may be doubled to determine the total amount of phosphorus allowed to be applied.

(III) When soil phosphorus storage capacity index is greater than 0 mg/kg but less than 20 mg/kg, the amount of crop nutrient demand phosphorus may be increased by 50 percent to determine the total amount of phosphorus allowed to be applied.

(IV) When the soil phosphorus capacity index is less than 0 mg/kg, the amount of phosphorus shall not be adjusted (i.e. the crop nutrient demand phosphorus equals the total amount of phosphorus allowed to be applied).

b. When the PWE of biosolids is 14% or greater, the amount of phosphorus shall not be adjusted unless the the soil phosphorus storage capacity index is greater than 40 mg/kg, in which case the crop nutrient demand phosphorus may be increased by 50 percent to determine the amount of total phosphorus allowed to be applied.

8. When considering the availability of nitrogen in biosolids, once the amount of plant available nitrogen (PAN) to be supplied by biosolids has been determined (i.e. the crop nitrogen demand has been adjusted to take other sources of nitrogen into account), this amount may be multiplied by a factor of 1.5 (i.e. a 50 percent increase) to determine the amount of total nitrogen (TN) that may be supplied by biosolids. For

example, if the crop nitrogen demand is 160 lbs PAN per acre per year and no other sources of nitrogen are applied, 240 lbs TN can be applied per acre per year by biosolids.

9. The calcium carbonate equivalency of any alkaline-treated biosolids and recommended lime application rates for each application zone.

10. Septage application rates for application zones with a soil capacity greater than 0 mg/kg shall be no more than 30,000 gallons per acre per year for septage containing food establishment sludge or no more than 40,000 gallons per acre per year for septage not containing food establishment sludge. Septage application rates for application zones with a soil phosphorus storage capacity index less than 0 mg/kg shall be no more than 12,000 gallons per acre per year. If septage is dewatered, these application rates shall be converted using the results of total solids monitoring of the dewatered septage.

11. The method of land application for each application zone; and.

12. The methodology and calculations used to determine the application rates for each application zone.

~~(e) Establish specific rates of application and procedures to land apply biosolids and all other nutrient sources to each application zone. The NMP shall address application rates for a projected five year period, at a minimum. As part of establishing the application rates, the NMP shall include:~~

~~1. A specific assessment of the potential for phosphorus movement from each application zone;~~

~~2. A listing and quantification of all nutrient sources for each application zone;~~

~~3. The availability of the nitrogen in the biosolids being applied, any nitrogen available from biosolids applications in previous years, and any nitrogen available in subsequent years covering the minimum five year period of the NMP;~~

~~4. The current and planned plant production sequence or crop rotation for each application zone for the next five years, at a minimum;~~

~~5. Realistic annual yield goals for each crop identified for each application zone;~~

~~6. The recommended nitrogen and phosphorus application rates (i.e. nutrient demand) for the crops to be grown on each application zone;~~

~~7. The calcium carbonate equivalency of any alkaline-treated biosolids and recommended lime application rates for each application zone;~~

~~8. The method of land application for each application zone; and;~~

~~9. The methodology and calculations used to determine the application rates for each application zone.~~

~~(6) When considering the availability of nitrogen in biosolids, the following shall be accepted by the Department:~~

~~(a) The nitrogen calculation methods found in Chapter 7 of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency *Process Design Manual for Land Application of Sewage Sludge and Domestic Septage*, which is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference. All calculations and values used in the calculations shall be fully documented and submitted with the NMP. These values shall include a complete nitrogen analysis (i.e. organic nitrogen (Org N), ammonium (NH₄ N), and nitrate (NO₃ N)) for all facilities that will use the site, or~~

~~(b) In lieu of using the full calculation method for nitrogen in Chapter 7 of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency *Process Design Manual for Land Application of Sewage Sludge and Domestic Septage*, once the amount of plant available nitrogen to be supplied by biosolids has been determined (i.e. the crop nitrogen demand has been adjusted to take other sources of nitrogen into account), this amount may be multiplied by a factor of 1.5 (i.e. a 50 percent increase) to determine the amount of total nitrogen that may be supplied by biosolids.~~

~~(7) through (8) renumbered (6) through (7) No change.~~

(8) The NMP site shall be reviewed annually by the site permittee along with the annual soil fertility testing results. If the soil capacity index has changed the allowed phosphorus adjustment of subparagraph 62-640.500(5)(f)7., F.A.C., the NMP shall be revised for the upcoming year. Any revisions to the NMP shall be provided to the Department. Revisions not requiring a permit revision in accordance with paragraph 62-640.300(3)(b), F.A.C., shall be provided to the Department with the site annual summary submitted in accordance with paragraph 62-640.650(5)(d), F.A.C., or earlier. Any revisions requiring a permit modification in accordance with paragraph 62-640.300(3)(e), F.A.C., shall be completed by a certified nutrient management planner or by a professional engineer licensed in the State of Florida.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.500, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10,_____.

62-640.600 Pathogen Reduction and Vector Attraction Reduction.

All biosolids applied to the land or distributed and marketed shall be treated with a treatment process designed to reduce pathogens and achieve vector attraction reduction in accordance with the requirements of this section. The Department hereby adopts and incorporates by reference the pathogen and vector attraction reduction requirements of 40 C.F.R. 503.32, codified as of July 1, 2018, and 503.33, revised as of April 9, 2007, and effective on April 25, 2007, except for the site restrictions in 40 C.F.R. 503.32(b)(5); and the septage requirements in 40 C.F.R. 503.32(c),

<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>. The Department hereby adopts and incorporates ~~and~~ the vector attraction reduction requirements in 40 C.F.R. 503.33, codified as of July 1, 2018, except for the requirements of 40 C.F.R. 503.33(b)(11) and 503.33(b)(12), <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>. Copies of these documents may be obtained by contacting the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.

(1) Pathogen Reduction Requirements.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Septage management facilities that are regulated by the Department, and that do not treat any amount of biosolids shall satisfy Class B pathogen reduction requirements if sufficient lime is added to produce a pH of 12 for a minimum of two hours, ~~or a pH of 12.5 for a minimum of 30 minutes~~. Processes and design shall be in accordance with the guidance for lime stabilization of septage in Chapter 6, Process Design Manual for Sludge Treatment and Disposal, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 1979, which the Department adopts and incorporates by reference and is available from <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>, or from the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The pH shall be maintained at or above 11 until land application, ~~but shall be less than 12.5 at the time of land application~~. Materials treated in accordance with this provision shall be managed as Class B biosolids.

(2) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.600, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10,_____.

62-640.650 Monitoring, Record Keeping, Reporting, and Notification.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Monitoring Requirements.

(a) Biosolids Monitoring.

1. Biosolids sampling and analysis shall be conducted as follows:

a. Monitoring to monitor for the pathogen and vector attraction reduction requirements of Rule 62-640.600, F.A.C., and the parameters in subparagraph 62-640.650(3)(a)3., F.A.C., shall be conducted by the treatment facility in accordance with 40 C.F.R. 503.8, codified as of July 1, 2018, which the Department hereby adopts and incorporates by reference available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>, and the *POTW Sludge Sampling and Analysis Guidance Document*, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency,

August 1989, which the Department adopts and incorporates by reference available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>. These documents are also ~~This document is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545 Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, or any of the Department's District Offices.~~ In cases where disagreements exist between 40 C.F.R. 503.8 and the *POTW Sludge Sampling and Analysis Guidance Document*, the requirements in 40 C.F.R. 503.8 will apply.

b. Monitoring for water extractable phosphorus shall follow the Universal Water Extractable P Test for Manure and Biosolids, Wolf, A.M., P.A. Moor, P.J.A., Kleinman, D.M. Sullivan, 2009, Methods of Phosphorus Analysis for Soils, Sediments, Residuals and Waters, Second Edition, Southern Cooperative Series Bulletin, Pages 76-80, <https://sera17dotorg.files.wordpress.com/2015/02/sera-17-methods-for-p-2009.pdf>, which the Department adopts and incorporates by reference. The document is available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX> and from the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.

c. Beginning after (the effective date of the rule), all domestic wastewater treatment facilities and biosolids treatment facilities permitted to land apply biosolids shall start monitoring for water extractable phosphorus during routine biosolids monitoring events in accordance with subparagraphs 62-640.650(3)(a)3 and 4., F.A.C. The results shall be provided to the permittees of land application sites where the facility's biosolids are land applied but are not required to be repored by the facility to the Department until after the facility is subject to this chapter revised (effective date of the rule) in accordance with paragraph 62-640.100(5)(f), F.A.C.

2. Permit applications for all treatment facilities that land apply or distribute and market biosolids shall identify the monitoring that will be conducted for all microbial and all operational and process parameters necessary to demonstrate compliance with the pathogen reduction and vector attraction reduction requirements of Rule 62-640.600, F.A.C. All operational and process parameters, such as time and temperature, number of windrow turnings, pH readings, etc., shall be monitored ~~on a continual basis~~ as applicable to the treatment process to demonstrate compliance with Rule 62-640.600, F.A.C., and shall be as specified in the facility's permit.

3. All treatment facilities that land apply or distribute and market biosolids shall analyze biosolids for the following parameters, except as provided in paragraph 62-640.880(5)(a), F.A.C.:

Parameter	Units
Total Nitrogen	% dry weight basis
Total Phosphorus	% dry weight basis
Water Extractable Phosphorus*	% dry weight basis
Total Potassium	% dry weight basis
Arsenic	mg/kg dry weight basis
Cadmium	mg/kg dry weight basis
Copper	mg/kg dry weight basis
Lead	mg/kg dry weight basis
Mercury	mg/kg dry weight basis
Molybdenum	mg/kg dry weight basis
Nickel	mg/kg dry weight basis
Selenium	mg/kg dry weight basis
Zinc	mg/kg dry weight basis
pH	standard units
Total Solids	%
Calcium Carbonate Equivalent**	% dry weight basis
<u>* Only required for biosolids treated by alkaline addition</u>	

* Not required for septage management facilities

** Only required for biosolids treated by alkaline addition

4. Treatment facilities that land apply or distribute and market biosolids shall monitor microbial parameters and the parameters listed in subparagraph 62-540.650(3)(a)3., F.A.C., as follows:

a. through b. No change.

c. For all other biosolids that are land applied, the minimum frequency of monitoring shall be in accordance with the following table:

<u>Biosolids Generated (Dry Tons Per Year)</u> BIOSOLIDS GENERATED (DRY TONS PER YEAR)	<u>Monitoring Frequency</u> MONITORING FREQUENCY
Greater than zero but less than 160	Once per year.
Equal to or greater than 160 but less than 800	Once per quarter.
Equal to or greater than 800 but less than 8,000	Once per 60 days.
Equal to or greater than 8,000	Once per month.

5. through 7. No change.

(b) Soil Monitoring.

1. The site permittee shall ensure soil fertility testing is conducted in accordance with the NMP and the results of soil fertility tests shall be included in the application site records.

a. The soil fertility testing and results shall be equivalent to the "Phosphorus Index Test" as conducted by the University of Florida (UF)/Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences

(IFAS) Extension Soil Testing Laboratory, and shall include the "Capacity Index" results for the soil. At a minimum, soil fertility testing shall provide: soil pH; Mehlich-3 extraction method results for phosphorus (P), aluminum (Al), and iron (Fe); calculated soil capacity index (CI) following subsection 62-640.200(9), F.A.C.; and, lime requirement.

b. To determine the soil capacity index, soil fertility testing samples may be taken at depths greater than 6 inches but no deeper than the depth of the seasonal high water table. If deeper samples are taken, a minimum of five soil profiles shall be taken for every 50 acres, or for the entire application zone if larger than 50 acres and it is demonstrated that five profiles are sufficiently representative based on soil survey maps. Soil fertility testing may be performed by the University of Florida Analytical Research Laboratory/Extension Soil Testing Laboratory or other agricultural laboratory participating in the North American Proficiency Testing Program (NAPT).

c. Soil testing shall follow the procedures in the documents below and which are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference and available from the address links provided for each document below and from the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The soil testing documents to be followed are as follows:

(I) IFAS publication publications "Soil Testing," UF/IFAS Circular 239, September 2003 <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>; ~~identified in paragraph 62-640.210(1)(e), F.A.C., and~~

(II) "Extension Soil Testing Laboratory (ESTL) Analytical Procedure and Training Manual," UF/IFAS Circular 1248, February 2009 <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>; ~~and, identified in paragraph 62-640.210(1)(p), F.A.C.,~~

c. "Mehlich-3," Chapter 4.3, Soil Test Methods From the Southeastern United States, Southern Cooperative Series Bulletin No. 419, 2014 <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>. ~~which are hereby incorporated by reference. These documents are available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 2400 or any of the Department's District Offices. Results of soil fertility tests shall be included in the application site records.~~

2. Representative soil monitoring for parameters in subsection 62-640.700(5), F.A.C., shall be conducted at application sites for each application zone prior to application site permitting, ~~except for sites only permitted for Class AA biosolids.~~ At a minimum, one soil sample shall be taken for each application zone or for every 50 acres of application area,

whichever is smaller. Each sample shall be a composite of at least ten random samples to a depth of six inches and shall be completely mixed to form a minimum one-pound sample. Sampling and analysis shall be in accordance with 40 C.F.R. 503.8(4), ~~which is hereby adopted and incorporated in subparagraph 62-640.650(3)(a)1., F.A.C. by reference.~~ Results of initial soil monitoring shall be reported on the Biosolids Site Permit Application, Form 62-640.210(2)(d).

(c) Ground Water Monitoring.

1. A ground water monitoring program shall be established by the site permittee, and approved by the Department for land application sites when the application rate in the NMP exceeds more than ~~160 400~~ lbs/acre/year of ~~total plant available~~ nitrogen or 40 lbs/acre/year of total P₂O₅ (i.e. more than 17.4 lbs/acre/year of total phosphorus), or when the soil capacity index is less than 0 mg/kg. When soil fertility testing indicates the soil capacity index has become less than 0 mg/kg, the permittee of a biosolids land application site shall establish a ground water monitoring program in accordance with subparagraph 62-640.650(3)(c)2., F.A.C., below within one year of the date of the sampling results. When ground water monitoring is not required, the permittee shall allow the Department to install ground water monitoring wells at any time during the effective period of the Department-issued facility or land application site permit and conduct monitoring.

2. through 5. No change.

(d) Surface Water Monitoring

1. The site permittee shall ensure surface water monitoring for total phosphorus, total nitrogen, and fecal coliform bacteria is conducted for sites when an application site is bordered or crossed by waters of the state and the application zone is located within 1000 feet of waters of the state, excluding wetlands. Monitoring shall be conducted at least quarterly. When surface water monitoring is not required, the permittee shall allow the Department to install equipment to monitor surface water and surface water runoff at any time during the effective period of the Department-issued facility or land application site permit and conduct monitoring.

2. Monitoring of the receiving surface water shall be detailed in a monitoring plan submitted to the Department for approval that meets all the requirements of Rule 62-302.200 and Chapter 62-160, F.A.C.

3. A sampling and analysis plan shall include the components as required by subsection 62-307.200(3), F.A.C.

~~(e)(4)~~ Unless specifically provided otherwise in this chapter, ~~a~~Any laboratory tests required by this chapter shall be performed by a laboratory certified in accordance with paragraph 62-620.610(18)(d), F.A.C. Sample collection required by this chapter shall be performed in accordance with paragraph 62-620.610(18)(e), F.A.C. The Specific Oxygen Uptake Rate (SOUR) test, as required by 40 C.F.R.

503.33(b)(4), shall be conducted within 15 minutes of sample collection and shall be performed by a certified laboratory or under the direction of an operator certified in accordance with Chapter 62-602, F.A.C. Field pH readings at septage management facilities may be taken a septic tank contractors or master septic tank contractors, or facility personnel under the supervision of a septic tank contractor or master septic tank contractor.

(4) Record Keeping Requirements.

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) Treatment facility permittees that land apply biosolids and site permittees receiving biosolids shall maintain hauling records to track the transport of biosolids between the treatment facility and the application site. The hauling records for each party shall contain the following information:

<u>Treatment Facility Permittee Records:</u>	<u>Site Permittee Records</u>
1. <u>Date and Time Shipped and Shipment ID</u>	1. <u>Date and Time Received and Shipment ID</u>
2. <u>Amount of Biosolids Shipped</u>	2. <u>Name and ID Number of Treatment Facility from which Biosolids received</u>
3. <u>Concentration of are parameters in subparagraph 62-640.650(3)(a)3., F.A.C., and the Date of Analysis</u>	3. <u>Signature of Hauler</u>
4. <u>Class of Biosolids Shipped</u>	4. <u>Signature of Site Manager at the Application Site or Designee</u>
5. <u>Name and ID Number of Permitted Application Site Where Biosolids are Shipped</u>	
6. <u>Signature of Certified Operator at the Treatment Facility or Designee</u>	
7. <u>Signature of Hauler and Name of Hauling Firm</u>	
TREATMENT FACILITY	
PERMITTEE	SITE PERMITTEE

1.	Date and Time Shipped and Shipment ID	1.	Date and Time Received and Shipment ID
2.	Amount of Biosolids Shipped	2.	Name and ID Number of Treatment Facility from which Biosolids received
3.	Concentration of are parameters in subparagraph 62-640.650(3)(a)3., F.A.C., and the Date of Analysis	3.	Signature of Hauler
4.	Class of Biosolids Shipped	4.	Signature of Site Manager at the Application Site or Designee
5.	Name and ID Number of Permitted Application Site Where Biosolids are Shipped		
6.	Signature of Certified Operator at the Treatment Facility or Designee		
7.	Signature of Hauler and Name of Hauling Firm		

~~Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399 2400, or any of the Department's District Offices;~~

4. The results of all soil monitoring, ground water monitoring, and surface ground water monitoring conducted in accordance with paragraphs 62-640.650(3)(b) through and (d)(e), F.A.C.,

5. Records Any records necessary for demonstrating compliance with items and operations specified in the NMP such as crop planting records if the NMP calls for planting crops, harvesting dates, harvested and yields if the NMP application rate is based on harvesting, applications of other sources of nutrients, or other records identified in the NMP; and;

6. Records Any records necessary for demonstrating compliance with the demonstration submitted with the NMP for sites located within the Lake Okeechobee, St. Lucie River, and Caloosahatchee River watersheds in accordance with subsection 62-640.500(7)(8), F.A.C.; and,

7. Records demonstrating compliance with any reasonable assurance provisions contained in the site NMP or water quality monitoirng plan for land application at sites with a seasonal high water table within six inches of the soil surface or depth of biosolids placement in accordance with paragraph 62-640.700(10)(a), F.A.C.

(5) Reporting Requirements.

(a) No change.

(b) Distribution and Marketing Reporting. Any person who delivers biosolids to Florida for distribution and marketing shall submit a monthly Discharge Monitoring Report that includes the information required in subsection 62-640.850(4), F.A.C., on the Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) form, DEP Form 62-620.910(10), adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-620.910, F.A.C., appropriate form as provided by the Department. The DMR forms shall be mailed to the Department and the delegated program at the addresses specified in the permit or be submitted electronically using the DEP Business Portal at <http://www.fldeportal.com/go/>. DMR forms shall be submitted in accordance with the frequencies specified on the DMR forms attached to the permit and be postmarked or entered electronically by the 28th day of the month following the month of operation. After December 20, 2023, DMR forms shall be submitted electronically.

(c) Treatment Facility Biosolids Annual Summary. Permittees of wastewater treatment facilities or biosolids treatment facilities permitted for land application shall submit an annual a summary of the shipment records required by paragraph 62-640.650(4)(d), and subsection 62-640.880(4), F.A.C., as applicable, on DEP Form 62-640.210(2)(b), to the appropriate District Office of the Department, or to the delegated local program, on an annual basis. The summary must

(e) through (i) No change.

(j) Logs and records detailing biosolids applications to each application zone at an application site shall be maintained by the site permittee indefinitely and shall be available for inspection within seven days of request by the Department or the Delegated Local Program. At a minimum, the logs and records for the most recent six months of application shall be available for inspection at the land application site (i.e. maintained onsite). The logs and records shall include:

1. through 2. No change.

3. For each application zone, maintain Biosolids Application Site Log, Form 62-640.210(2)(e), F.A.C., ~~effective August 29, 2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference and available from the Department of Environmental~~

~~be submitted on Department Form 62-640.210(2)(b), effective August 29, 2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, and available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department's District Offices. The summary shall include all biosolids shipped during the period January 1 through December 31. The summary shall be submitted to the Department and the appropriate delegated program at the addresses specified in the permit. Electronic submittal is preferred and may be available at the DEP Business Portal at <http://www.fldepportal.com/go/>. After December 20, 2023, summaries shall be submitted electronically. The summary for each year shall be submitted postmarked or electronically submitted to the Department by February 19 of the following year.~~

(d) Biosolids Application Site Annual Summary. The site permittee shall submit an annual a summary of land application activity ~~to the appropriate District Office of the Department, or to the delegated local program, on an annual basis. The summary shall be submitted on Department on~~ Form 62-640.210(2)(c), ~~effective August 29, 2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference and available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department's District Offices. The summary for each year, covering the period from January 1 through December 31, shall be submitted to the Department by February 19 of the following year. The summary shall include all biosolids land applied during the period January 1 through December 31. The summary shall be submitted to the Department and the appropriate delegated program at the addresses specified in the permit. Electronic submittal is preferred and may be available at the DEP Business Portal at <http://www.fldepportal.com/go/>. After December 20, 2023, summaries shall be submitted electronically. The summary for each year shall be postmarked or electronically submitted by February 19 of the following year. The summary shall include all of the following, as applicable:~~

1. No change.
2. ~~Except for sites where only Class AA biosolids are applied, T~~the total cumulative loading for the parameters specified in paragraph 62-640.700(7)(b), F.A.C., applied to each application zone identified in the site's NMP. Cumulative loading shall be determined as described in subsection 62-640.700(7), F.A.C., and shall be calculated for all biosolids applications at a site beginning with the earlier of:
 - a. through b. No change.
 3. No change.

4. The results of any ground water monitoring and surface water monitoring required by paragraphs paragraph 62-640.650(3)(c) and (d), F.A.C.

5. No change.
6. Copies of records kept in accordance with subparagraph 62-640.650(4)(j)6., F.A.C., demonstrating compliance with the demonstration submitted with the NMP for sites located within the Lake Okeechobee, St. Lucie River, and Caloosahatchee River watersheds in accordance with subsection ~~62-640.500(7) 62-640.500(8)~~, F.A.C.
 - (e) No change.
 - (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, ~~403.0855~~, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, ~~403.0855~~, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 3-30-98, Amended 8-29-10,_____.

62-640.700 Requirements for Land Application ~~of Class AA, A, and B Biosolids.~~

(1) ~~Except as provided in paragraph 62-640.100(5)(g), F.A.C., B~~biosolids shall only be applied to land application sites that are permitted by the Department in accordance with Rule 62-640.300, F.A.C., and have a valid NMP.

(2) All biosolids applied to land application sites shall meet the requirements of Class AA, Class A, or Class B biosolids as defined in subsections ~~62-640.200(10), (11), and (12) 62-640.200(9), (10), and (11)~~, F.A.C.

- (3) through (4) No change.
- (5) Parameter Concentrations.

(a) Biosolids may be applied to a land application site only if all parameter concentrations do not exceed the following ceiling concentrations in any sample, and the biosolids meet the pathogen and vector attraction reduction requirements set forth in Rule 62-640.600, F.A.C., for the intended site use.

Ceiling Concentrations

CEILING CONCENTRATIONS (mg/kg dry weight basis)	
Parameter	Single Sample Concentration (mg/kg dry weight basis)
Arsenic	75
Cadmium	85
Copper	4300
Lead	840
Mercury	57
Molybdenum	75
Nickel	420
Selenium	100
Zinc	7500

(b) In addition to meeting the single sample requirements of paragraph 62-640.700(5)(a), F.A.C., Class A biosolids may be classified as Class AA biosolids only if the monthly average parameter concentrations do not exceed the following criteria:

Class AA Parameter Concentrations

CLASS AA PARAMETER CONCENTRATIONS (mg/kg dry weight basis)	
Parameter	Monthly Average Concentration (mg/kg dry weight basis)
Arsenic	41
Cadmium	39
Copper	1,500
Lead	300
Mercury	17
Nickel	420
Selenium	100
Zinc	2,800

(c) No change.

(6) General Application Site Requirements.

(a) No change.

(b) ~~Beginning within one year of August 29, 2010,~~ Class A and Class B biosolids treated by alkaline addition shall be applied by the best management practice of incorporation or injection unless the application area is located at a distance greater than one-quarter mile from the application site property line. This distance shall be decreased to the setback distance provided by subparagraph 62-640.700(8)(b)2., F.A.C., if the affected adjacent property owner provides written consent.

(c) through (d) No change.

(e) Biosolids shall not be stored, stockpiled, or staged at a land application site for more than seven days unless approved by the Department pursuant to subparagraph 2., below.

1. No change.

2. The Department shall approve storage periods for longer than seven days if the following conditions are met:

a. through c. No change.

d. The storage facilities are adequate for the rate of biosolids generated by permitted treatment facilities sending biosolids to the application site; ~~and,~~

e. A longer storage period is needed because of agricultural operations or climatic factors at the application site; ~~and,-~~

f. In addition to the provisions of subparagraph 62-640.700(6)(e)1., F.A.C., measures to prevent leaching of nutrients are also implemented.

3. through 4. No change.

(f) No change.

(7) Cumulative Application Limits.

(a) No change.

(b) The application of Class A and Class B biosolids to application zones which accept biosolids that meet the ceiling concentration limits in subsection 62-640.700(5), F.A.C., shall be restricted by the following cumulative application limits:

Cumulative Application Limits

CUMULATIVE APPLICATION LIMITS (pounds per acre)	
Parameter	Limit (pounds per acre)
Arsenic	36.6
Cadmium	34.8
Copper	1,340
Lead	268
Mercury	15.2
Molybdenum	Report only
Nickel	375
Selenium	89.3
Zinc	2,500

(c) through (d) No change.

(8) No change.

(9) The pH of the soil or the biosolids soil mixture of an application zone shall be 5.0 or greater at the time Class A or Class B biosolids are applied. At a minimum, soil pH testing shall be done annually.

(10) Seasonal High Water Table.

(a) In accordance with subsection 62-640.400(14), biosolids shall not be applied on soils that have a seasonal high water table less than 6 inches from the soil surface or within 6 inches of the intended depth of biosolids placement, unless a Department-approved nutrient management plan and water quality monitoring plan provide reasonable assurance that the land application of biosolids at the site will not cause or contribute to a violation of the state’s surface water quality standards or ground water standards.

(b) A minimum unsaturated soil depth of two feet is required between the depth of biosolids placement and the water table level at the time the Class A or Class B biosolids are applied to the soil.

(c) The permittee can indicate the seasonal high ground water ~~table level~~ for each application zone at the application site in the Biosolids Site Permit Application, Form 62-640.210(2)(d), by use of soil survey maps or by an evaluation conducted by a professional engineer who is licensed in the State of Florida or a professional soil scientist certified and registered by the Florida Association of Environmental Soil Scientists. The methodologies set forth in the document “Soil and Water Relationships of Florida’s Ecological Communities” (Florida Soil Conservation Staff 1992, <https://floridadep.gov/sites/default/files/soil-and-water.pdf>), which the Department adopts and incorporates by reference, and is available at

<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX> and from the Department of Environmental Protection, Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, may be used to establish the seasonal high water table.

(d) If the seasonal high ground water level is within two feet of the depth of biosolids placement ~~or cannot be determined at the time of permitting~~, the water table level shall be determined in one or more representative location(s) in the application zone before each application of biosolids, by measuring the water level in a water-table monitoring well or a piezometer.

(11) Runoff Prevention Requirements.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Biosolids shall not be land applied on soils having a flooding frequency class of “frequent” or “very frequent”, or on soils having a flooding duration class of “long” or “very long,” as given in soil surveys and as defined by the NRCS in Section ~~618.31~~ 618.27 of the *National Soil Survey Handbook*, as of ~~August 2019~~ October 2009, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference and available at <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX> and from the Department of Environmental Protection, Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, ~~or any of the Department’s District Offices.~~

(12) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.700, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10,_____.

62-640.800 Additional Requirements for Land Application at Reclamation Sites.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) Ground water and surface water monitoring shall be conducted for reclamation sites as provided in paragraphs 62-640.650(3)(c) and (d), F.A.C.

~~(6)(5)~~ No change.

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.800, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10,_____.

62-640.850 Distribution and Marketing of Class AA Biosolids.

The distribution and marketing of biosolids or biosolids products shall meet the requirements of this section and this chapter, but are not required to meet subsections 62-640.300(2) and (3); Rule 62-640.500; paragraphs 62-640.650(3)(b) through

(d); 62-640.650(4)(c) through (j); 62-640.650(5)(c) through (e); 62-640.650(6)(a), (b), (f), and (g); subsections 62-640.700(1) through (4); 62-640.700(6) through (12); and Rule 62-640.800, F.A.C.

(1) Distributed and marketed biosolids or biosolids products shall meet the requirements for Class AA biosolids as defined in subsection ~~62-640.200(11)~~ 62-640.200(10), F.A.C.

(2) Distributed and marketed biosolids or biosolids products shall be distributed and marketed as a fertilizer in accordance with Chapter 576, F.S., ~~(2009)~~, and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C., ~~1-18-2010, both hereby adopted and incorporated by reference~~, or distributed and marketed to a person or entity that will sell or give-away the biosolids or biosolids products as a fertilizer or as a component of a fertilizer subject to Chapter 576, F.S., and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C. ~~Copies of Chapter 576, F.S., and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C., are available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department’s District Offices.~~ For the purposes of this chapter, biosolids composts that are distributed and marketed outside of the Lake Okeechobee, St. Lucie River, and Caloosahatchee River watersheds, as defined in Section 373.4595, F.S., do not have to be distributed and marketed as a fertilizer if the biosolids compost product is enrolled and certified under the U.S. Composting Council’s (USCC) Seal of Testing Assurance (STA) program under the USCC STA program document, Rules for STA Certified Compost, May 6, 2020, in effect on 5-20-2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>. A copy of the USCC STA program document is available from ~~the Department of Environmental Protection, Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, or any of the Department’s District Offices.~~

(3) Any treatment facility which produces biosolids in Florida that will be distributed and marketed or any person who delivers biosolids to Florida to be distributed and marketed shall submit the information listed in paragraph 62-640.850(3)(b), F.A.C., to the Department.

(a) No change.

(b) The information shall include:

1. The Florida fertilizer license number assigned in accordance with Florida’s Commercial Fertilizer Law, Chapter 576, F.S., ~~(2009)~~, and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C., ~~1-18-2010, both hereby adopted and incorporated by reference~~, under which the biosolids or biosolids products will be distributed and marketed ~~(copies of Chapter 576, F.S., and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C., are available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone~~

~~Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department's District Offices) or documentation showing proof of certification for biosolids composts enrolled in the USCC STA program in effect on 5-20-2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference (a copy of the USCC STA program document is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department's District Offices),~~

2. through 4. No change.

5. The label or information sheet, as applicable, to be provided at the time of distribution and marketing of the biosolids in accordance with subsection 62-640.850(5), F.A.C., Chapter 576, F.S., (2009), and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C., ~~4-18-2010, both hereby adopted and incorporated by reference, as applicable (copies of Chapter 576, F.S., and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C., are available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department's District Offices) or equivalent information for biosolid composts certified and enrolled in the USCC STA program in effect on 5-20-2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference (a copy of the USCC STA program document is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, or any of the Department's District Offices),~~

6. through 7. No change.

(4) No change.

(5) In addition to any fertilizer labeling requirements of Chapter 576, F.S., and Chapter 5E-1, F.A.C., or the equivalent information for biosolids composts certified and enrolled in the USCC STA program ~~in effect on 5-20-2010, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference (a copy of the USCC STA program document is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, or any of the Department's District Offices)~~, the following information must be made available to the users by the manufacturer by product labels or other means:

(a) through (c) No change.

(6) Any person who intends to begin shipping biosolids into Florida for distribution and marketing shall notify the Department in writing of their intent to distribute and market the biosolids in Florida and provide reasonable assurance that the biosolids meet the requirements for Class AA biosolids. The notification shall be sent to the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2400. The notification shall be submitted at least 30 days prior to initiating shipment of the biosolids into Florida. Any persons currently

shipping biosolids into Florida for distribution and marketing shall have 90 days after August 29, 2010 to provide the notification. The notification shall include:

(a) through (h) No change.

(i) A copy of the most recent treatment facility annual report submitted to EPA in accordance with 40 C.F.R. 503.18, codified as of July 1, 2018, which the Department hereby adopts and incorporates adopted and incorporated by reference <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>. A copy of 40 C.F.R. 503.18 is available from the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. Facilities not required by EPA to submit an annual report shall submit a report equivalent to an EPA report in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Section 503.18;

(j) through (l) No change.

(7) By February 19 of each year, any person shipping biosolids to Florida for distribution and marketing shall submit a copy of the applicable EPA facility annual biosolids report required by 40 C.F.R. 503.18, ~~July 1, 2009, hereby adopted and incorporated by reference~~, to the Wastewater Management Program, M.S. 3545, Department's Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. ~~A copy of 40 C.F.R. 503.18 is available from the Department of Environmental Protection, Domestic Wastewater Section, M.S. 3540, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or any of the Department's District Offices.~~

Rulemaking Authority 373.043, 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, ~~403.0855~~, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 373.4595, 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, ~~403.0855~~, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 8-12-90, Formerly 17-640.850, Amended 3-30-98, 8-29-10, _____.

62-640.880 Additional Requirements Related to Biosolids Treatment Facilities.

The requirements of this section shall apply to any facility that treats biosolids from other facilities prior to use, land application, or disposal. These requirements also apply to septage management facilities that treat domestic septage and combinations of food establishment sludges, wastes removed from portable toilets, and wastes removed from holding tanks associated with boats, marina pumpout, or other onsite systems prior to use, land application, or disposal.

(1) No change.

(2) Permitting.

(a) Fees. For the purpose of determining applicable permit fees, the biosolids treatment facility shall be classified as Type I, II, or III based on the design capacity established by the permittee as follows:

	DESIGN CAPACITY	DESIGN CAPACITY
--	-----------------	-----------------

Type TYPE	Design Capacity (Dry Tons Per Year) (DRY TONS PER YEAR)	Design Capacity (Dry Tons Per Day) (DRY TONS PER DAY)
I	≥1653	≥4.5
II	320-1,653	0.88-4.5
III	≤320	≤0.88

(b) through (i) No change.

(j) Staffing. The level of operator staffing at a biosolids treatment facility shall be as follows:

Class Of Biosolids**	Staffing: Type I*	Staffing: Type II*	Staffing: Type III*
A/AA	Class A Operator 8 hours/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 4 hours/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 2 hours/day 5 days/week
B	Class A Operator 2 hours/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 1 hour/day 5 days/week	Class C Operator 1 hour/day 3 days/week
B***	Class A Operator 1 hour/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 1 hour/day 3 days/week	1 hour/week

*Classification of Type of facility as determined by paragraph 62-640.880(2)(a), F.A.C.

**Class of pathogen reduction achieved by the biosolids treatment facility in accordance with subsection 62-640.600(1), F.A.C.

***This category is for Class B liquid alkaline stabilization only.

	TYPE I*	TYPE II*	TYPE III*
A/AA* *	Class A Operator 8 hours/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 4 hours/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 2 hours/day 5 days/week
B**	Class A Operator 2 hours/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 1 hour/day 5 days/week	Class C Operator 1 hour/day 3 days/week
B***	Class A Operator 1 hour/day 5 days/week	Class B Operator 1 hour/day 3 days/week	Class C Operator 1 hour/week

	1 hour/day	1 hour/day	1 hour/week
	5 days/week	3 days/week	

*Classification of Type of facility as determined by paragraph 62-640.880(2)(a), F.A.C.

**These letters correspond to the Class of pathogen reduction that is achieved by the biosolids treatment facility in accordance with subsection 62-640.600(1), F.A.C.

***This category is for Class B liquid alkaline stabilization only.

1. No change.

2. Operator staffing requirements for facilities addressed in paragraph 62-640.880(2)(d), F.A.C., shall be established as the more stringent of either the requirements in Chapter 62-699, F.A.C., or the requirements in paragraph 62-640.880(2)(j), F.A.C. For septage management facilities with a permitted capacity equivalent to 10,000 gallons per day or less, the Class C operator requirements given in paragraph 62-640.880(2)(j), F.A.C., may be substituted with a registered septic tank contractor or master septic tank contractor.

3. through 4. No change.

(k) No change.

(3) No change.

(4) Hauling Records.

(a) The biosolids treatment facility and the source facility transporting the biosolids shall maintain hauling records to track the transport of biosolids between facilities. The hauling records for each party shall contain the following information:

Source Facility Records:	Biosolids Treatment Facility
1. Date and Time Shipped	1. Date and Time Received
2. Amount of Biosolids Shipped	2. Amount of Biosolids Received
3. Degree of Treatment (if applicable)	3. Name and ID Number of Source Facility
4. Name and ID Number of Biosolids Treatment Facility	4. Signature of Hauler
5. Signature of Responsible Party at Source Facility	5. Signature of Responsible Party at Biosolids Treatment Facility
6. Signature of Hauler and Name of Hauling Firm	

SOURCE FACILITY	BIOSOLIDS TREATMENT FACILITY
1. Date and Time Shipped	1. Date and Time Received
2. Amount of Biosolids Shipped	2. Amount of Biosolids Received
3. Degree of Treatment (if applicable)	3. Name and ID Number of Source Facility
4. Name and ID Number of Biosolids Treatment Facility	4. Signature of Hauler
5. Signature of Responsible Party at Source Facility	5. Signature of Responsible Party at Biosolids Treatment Facility
6. Signature of Hauler and Name of Hauling Firm	

(b) through (c) No change.

(5) through (6) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 403.051, 403.061, 403.062, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.704, 403.707 FS. Law Implemented 403.021, 403.051, 403.061, 403.0855, 403.087, 403.088, 403.0881, 403.702, 403.704, 403.707, 403.708 FS. History—New 3-30-98, Amended 8-29-10,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Maurice Barker, Senior Program Analyst, Wastewater Management Program

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Noah Valenstein, Secretary

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: November 23, 2020

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: April 14, 2020

Section III

Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

RULE NO.: 12-25.037
 RULE TITLE: Applying for Participation in the Program
 NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 46 No. 187, September 24, 2020 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

The following changes are made in response to public comments.

12-25.037 Request to Conduct a Certified Audit.

(1) When a taxpayer wants to participate in the Certified Audit Program, the taxpayer must engage work with a qualified practitioner to complete a Request to Conduct a Certified Audit (Form DR-342000, effective XX/XX, hereby incorporated by reference, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->), and submit the request to the Department, along with any required supporting documents.

Copies of this form are available, without cost, by one of the following methods:

- (a) through (c) No change.
- (2) through (6) No change.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NOS.: 33-601.314
 RULE TITLES: Rules of Prohibited Conduct and Penalties for Infractions

33-601.800 Close Management

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 46 No. 196, October 7, 2020 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

The following changes were precipitated by comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee in a letter dated October 23, 2020, and comments received at a public hearing held on November 12, 2020.

33-601.314 Rules of Prohibited Conduct and Penalties for Infractions.

Section 1 through 10 ~~11~~ below show the maximum penalties allowed for the listed offenses. Section 11 ~~12~~ shows the penalties that will be imposed for the listed offenses based on the time since an inmate’s last disciplinary infraction absent a statement in the written findings of the disciplinary team or hearing officer justifying an upward deviation. As used in this rule, “DC” means the maximum number of days of disciplinary confinement that may be imposed, and “GT” means the maximum number of days of gain time that may be taken. The imposition of DC and GT penalties are independent of one another and do not have to be imposed together; i.e., an inmate may be placed in DC without losing GT, and vice versa.

Maximum
 Disciplinary
 Actions

SECTION 1 through SECTION 2
 No change.

SECTION 3 – CONTRABAND – ANY ARTICLE NOT SOLD IN THE CANTEEN, OR ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTION, OR FOR WHICH YOU

DO NOT HAVE A SPECIFIC PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE INSTITUTION WHERE PRESENTLY HOUSED

- 3-1 through 3-7 No change.
- 3-8 Possession of negotiables – unauthorized amounts of cash where cash is permitted, any amount of cash where cash is not permitted, ~~another other~~ inmate’s canteen coupons, ~~another other~~ inmate’s cashless canteen or identification cards or gift certificates, checks, credit cards, or any other negotiable item which is not authorized 30 GT
- 3-9 Possession of unauthorized or altered identification – driver’s license, social ~~Social~~ security card, cashless canteen identification card, etc. 30 GT
- 3-10 through 3-17 No change.

SECTION 4 through SECTION 10
No change.

~~SECTION 11~~ SUPERVISED COMMUNITY RELEASE PROGRAM VIOLATIONS

- ~~11~~ Violation of the terms and conditions of the ~~10 DC + 15~~ ~~Supervised Community Release Agreement~~ ~~GT + removal~~ ~~assignment to a designated facility~~ ~~from the~~ ~~Supervised~~ ~~Community~~ ~~Release~~ ~~Program and~~ ~~assignment to~~ ~~a designated~~ ~~facility~~
- ~~11~~ Absconding from the Supervised ~~10 DC + 15~~ ~~2~~ ~~Community Release Program~~ ~~GT~~

SECTION ~~11~~ ~~12~~ PENALTY SCALE

(1) through (2) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09, 944.115, 944.14, 944.279, 944.28 FS. History–New 3-12-84, Amended 1-10-85, Formerly 33-22.12, Amended 12-30-86, 9-7-89, 11-22-90, 6-2-94, 10-1-95, 3-24-97, 7-9-98, 8-13-98, Formerly 33-22.012, Amended 9-30-99, 6-7-00, 4-18-02, 10-10-04, 1-9-05, 4-17-05, 6-5-05, 10-27-05, 10-12-06, 11-8-07, 5-18-08, 11-9-08, 5-11-09, 12-12-10, 10-1-11, 6-18-13, 11-14-13, 11-4-14, _____.

33-601.800 Close Management.

(1) Definitions.

(a) through (b) No change.

(c) Critical Event – involvement of a CM inmate in one or more of the following events or behaviors: assignment to

suicide observation status, homicide, attempted homicide, escape, attempted escape, physical or sexual assault or battery, or attempted physical or sexual assault or battery.

(d) through (t) No change.

(2) through (7)

(8) Behavioral Risk Assessment (BRA).

(a) The MDST shall determine the behavioral risk of each CM inmate by completing a BRA on Form DC4-729 or other validated risk assessment instrument. Form DC4-729 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, 501 S. Calhoun St., Tallahassee, FL 32399, <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-XXXXX>

~~http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-01965.~~

The effective date of the form is ~~XX/XX~~ 4-8-04.

(b) through (f) No change.

(9) through (10) No change.

(11) Programs and Privileges in Close Management Units.

(a) While in CM, an inmate’s movement within the institution and contacts with other individuals will be restricted. An inmate’s privileges will ~~also~~ be limited depending on the specific CM level to which the inmate is assigned. If an inmate transfers to a less restrictive level due to satisfactory adjustment, the adjustment period required for any privilege shall be waived. Upon placement in CM, inmates shall receive a copy of the Close Management Housing Unit Instructions, Form N11-046. Form N11-046 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, 501 S. Calhoun St., Tallahassee, FL 32399,

[http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-01973.](http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-01973)

The effective date of the form is ~~9-29-11~~ 3-10-05.

(b) through (d) No change.

(12) through (15) No change.

(16) Review of Close Management Status.

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) The SCO shall conduct an onsite interview with each inmate at least once every six months or as often as necessary to determine if continuation, modification, or removal from CM status is appropriate. The SCO shall review all reports prepared by the ICT concerning an inmate’s CM status and, if applicable, disciplinary confinement status, consider the results of BRAs, mental health evaluations, and any other information relevant to institutional adjustment, staff and inmate safety, and institutional security. The SCO shall interview the inmate unless exceptional circumstances exist or the inmate is approved for release to general population. If it is determined that no justifiable safety and security issues exist for the inmate to remain in CM, the SCO shall cause the inmate to be immediately released. For an inmate to remain in CM, the SCO

must determine based on all available ~~relevant~~ information that there are safety and security issues or other circumstances that justify ~~for~~ maintaining the inmate at the current level or at a modified level of CM. If applicable and in accordance with Rule 33-602.222, F.A.C., the SCO shall determine whether the inmate is to continue in or be removed from disciplinary confinement status. The SCO's decisions shall be documented in OBIS and on Form DC6-233C. The SCO shall advise the inmate of its decision.

- (f) through (g) No change.
- (17) through (18) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 944.09 FS. History—New 2-1-01, Amended 12-16-01, 4-8-04, 3-10-05, 4-9-06, 8-23-07, 4-27-08, 6-28-10, 4-6-11, 7-31-11, 1-4-12, 12-9-12, 12-24-13, 3-6-14, 8-17-16,_____.

In addition, because Forms DC4-729, Behavioral Risk Assessment, and Form NII-046, Close Management Housing Unit Instructions, are incorporated by reference in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C., language to that effect will be added to the footer of the forms. The following amendment will also be made to the first paragraph of Form DC4-729:

Instructions: A behavioral risk assessment (BRA) is to be completed on each team-decision CM inmate, as follows: within 14 days of CM placement; within 120 days of the initial assessment; every 180 days thereafter; and within three (3) work days of a critical event as defined in Rule 33-601.800, F.A.C. (escape, escape attempt, homicide, homicide attempt, physical assault, physical assault attempt, assignment to suicide observation status). Note that the BRA shall be completed at above intervals regardless of S-grade or housing assignment. Record rating for each risk factor; multiply the rating by the assigned weight to determine score for each factor; sum all scores to obtain total score. Any risk factor with a rating of 2 or higher must be addressed on the individualized service plan, if the inmate is classified S-2 or higher. The total score and individual risk factor ratings/scores are intended to be used with other pertinent information for service planning and administrative decision making. Original to be filed in the Mental Health Evaluations section of the health record, with copy to the confidential section of the master (classification) file.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
33-602.220	Administrative Confinement
33-602.900	Kiosks and Tablets
33-602.901	Video Visitation

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 46 No. 196, October 7, 2020 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

The following changes were precipitated by comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee in a letter dated October 27, 2020, and comments received at a public hearing held on November 12, 2020.

33-602.220 Administrative Confinement.

- (1) through (4) No change.
- (5) Conditions and Privileges.
 - (a) through (h) No change.
 - (i) Visiting – all visits for inmates in administrative confinement must be approved in advance by the warden or designee. The warden or designee shall notify the control room in writing when approval is given in advance of the visitor arriving at the institution. Requests for inmates in administrative confinement to visit shall be in writing to the ICT. Those inmates who are a threat to the security of the institution shall be denied visiting privileges. Attorney-client visits shall be in accordance with Rule 33-601.711, F.A.C., and shall not be restricted except on evidence that the visit would pose a potential threat of harm to an individual or a potential threat to the security of the institution. The warden or designee shall determine whether a pre-approved visit will be contact or non-contact based on one or all the criteria set forth in Rule 33-601.735, F.A.C. Inmates in administrative confinement are not allowed ~~allow~~ video visitation privileges as provided for in Rule 33-602.901, F.A.C.

(j) through (r) No change.

(6) through (10) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09, 945.04 FS. History—New 4-7-81, Amended 6-23-83, 3-12-84, Formerly 33-3.081, Amended 4-22-87, 8-27-87, 7-10-90, 12-4-90, 3-24-97, 4-26-98, 10-5-98, Formerly 33-3.0081, Amended 2-12-01, 2-5-02, 1-19-03, 4-1-04, 3-5-06, 10-31-06, 4-8-08, 6-25-08, 6-8-09, 7-5-10, 10-7-12, 3-6-14, 8-17-16,_____.

33-602.900 Kiosks and Tablets

(1) General Provisions. This rule applies to the possession and use of kiosks, tablets, and related services. ~~The provisions of this rule are supplemental to other Department rules, which remain in full force and effect unless otherwise expressly stated herein.~~ Access to a kiosk, tablet, kiosk services, and tablet services is a privilege and not a right afforded to inmates or others.

- (2) through (4) No change.
- (5) Tablets.
 - (a) Upon arrival at his or her permanent facility, a tablet may be obtained from the vendor by an ~~will be issued to every~~ inmate authorized to possess a tablet at no cost to the inmate. An inmate in a Department-operated institution or facility may ~~not~~ refuse to obtain ~~accept~~ a tablet.
 - (b) through (s) No change.
 - (6) No change.
 - (7) eCommunications.

(a) though (k) No change.

(l) Outgoing or incoming eCommunications will not be approved to be sent by or to an inmate if any part of it violates the following content standards:

1. No change.

2. The inmate or individual is not visually identifiable, or the face is covered or obscured. Religious headgear is permissible but must not interfere with the verification of a person’s identity.

3. through 23. No change.

(m) No change.

(8) through (10) No change.

(11) Hardware, Programs, and Technical Issues.

(a) No change.

(b) Customer support for kiosks, tablets, kiosk services, tablet services, media accounts, user accounts, and eCommunications will be provided by the vendor. If an inmate identifies an issue with his or her the assigned tablet, the inmate must submit a support ticket identifying the issue to the vendor’s customer service center through the Communication Center.

(c) through (d) No change.

(12) The Secretary and Deputy Secretary of Institutions have the authority to review and modify the kiosk and/or tablet privileges associated with any user account, including the use of any or all kiosk services or tablet services, when it is determined that the modification will further an inmate’s rehabilitation, ensure consistency with Department’s rules, enhance public safety, or ensure the security of a correctional institution.

(13) During an emergency or extended disruption of normal Department, regional, or institutional operations, the Secretary or Deputy Secretary of Institutions may modify the access to any or all privileges authorized under this rule. Normal access will be restored as soon as a safe return to normal operations is permitted by the circumstances. A modification may be instituted for any or the following reasons:

(a) through (g) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315. 944.09 FS. History–New _____.

33-602.901 Video Visitation

(1) through (11) No change.

(12) Inmates and approved visitors are subject to having video visitation sessions immediately terminated with no credit for the session, and having their video visitation privileges suspended under subsection (13) of this rule for violations of the following video visitation conduct and content standards:

(a) Proper Attire Standards.

1. through 9. No change.

10. Approved visitors must not wear clothing that has symbols, signs, ~~pictures~~, or words that present a potential threat to the security or order of the institution, containing inappropriate or vulgar language or graphics, including gang symbols, racist pictures or comments, ~~inflammatory pictures or communications~~, profanity, sexually explicit pictures or language, or similar material.

11. through 14. No change.

(b) No change.

(c) The following are secondary violations when they occur during a video visit:

1. through 6. No change.

7. Use of ~~profanity~~, or loud or hostile communication by an approved visitor or inmate.

8. through 12. No change.

13. Any attempt to conduct or participating in an unauthorized a media interview. Media interviews must be authorized and conducted pursuant to the processes outlined in Chapter 33-104, F.A.C.

14. through 17. No change.

(d) No change.

(13) through (14) No change.

(15) The Secretary and Deputy Secretary of Institutions have the authority to review and modify the video visitation privileges any inmate or approved visitor when it is determined that the modification will further an inmate’s rehabilitation, ensure consistency with the Department’s rules, enhance public safety, or ensure the security of a correctional institution.

(16) During an emergency or extended disruption of Department, regional, or institutional operations, the Secretary or Deputy Secretary of Institutions may modify the access to any or all privileges authorized under this rule. Normal access will be restored as soon as a return to safe operations is permitted by the circumstances. A modification may be instituted for any of the following reasons:

(a) through (g) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 944.09 FS. Law Implemented 20.315, 944.09, 944.8031 FS. History–New _____.

Section IV
Emergency Rules

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Health Facility and Agency Licensing

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

59AER20-14 Mandatory Entry to Conduct Voluntary COVID-19 Vaccinations of Assisted Living Facility

SPECIFIC REASONS FOR FINDING AN IMMEDIATE DANGER TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR WELFARE: The Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-

19) is a severe respiratory illness that can spread among humans through respiratory transmission. According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), people at risk for serious illness from COVID-19 include older adults and people with serious chronic medical conditions. In late 2019, a new and significant outbreak of COVID-19 emerged in China and the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a Public Health Emergency of International Concern. The CDC also confirmed community spread of COVID-19 in the United States and has issued extensive written guidance to help control the spread of COVID-19. According to the CDC, at the time of this filing, the United States has over 13,295,600 total cases and over 266,050 total deaths. Older adults are at a higher risk of developing serious complications from COVID-19. According to the United States Census Bureau, Florida has the largest percentage of residents age 65 and older in the nation.

On March 1, 2020, Governor Ron DeSantis declared a Public Health Emergency exists in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19 pursuant to Executive Order number 20-51. On March 7, 2020, the State Surgeon General and State Health Officer declared a Public Health Emergency in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19. On March 9, 2020, Florida Governor Ron DeSantis declared a state of emergency in Florida. As of the date of this filing, all counties in Florida have positive cases for COVID-19. There have been over 999,300 confirmed cases in Florida as a result of COVID-19 and over 18,500 deaths.

In guidance issued by the CDC titled Key Strategies to Prepare for COVID-19 in Long-term Care Facilities (LTCFs), the CDC directed that “[g]iven the high risk of spread once COVID-19 enters a LTCF, facilities must act immediately to protect residents, families, and staff from serious illness, complications, and death.” In order to carry out this guidance, the CDC further instructs facilities to, among other things, 1.) Keep COVID-19 from entering the facility and 2.) Identify the infection early.

Medical research shows the highly contagious COVID-19 virus can manifest as asymptomatic in positive individuals and the live, contagious coronavirus can shed at high concentrations before symptomatic development resulting in spread of the infection. Due to the congregate nature of long-term care facilities, the increased risk of transmission of COVID-19 is high. The highly transmissible nature of COVID-19 combined with the congregate nature of the long-term care facility settings and the close and personal contact that many long-term care facility staff have with the patients puts both residents and staff at a high risk of infection. Combining the high risk of long-term care facility settings with the risk posed by positive,

asymptomatic staff creates a potential for sudden outbreaks in long-term care facilities.

The Department of Health and its agents, including the Agency for Health Care Administration, are working daily to respond to positive cases to avoid outbreaks at long-term care facilities. These agencies have been systematically conducting infection control investigations and testing staff and residents at nursing homes and assisted living facilities across the state to quickly identify positive cases in order to avoid viral spread and outbreaks. A single positive staff member in a facility can cause an outbreak resulting in the hospitalization and death of many vulnerable residents. If the staff member works at multiple facilities, this can result in facility-to-facility spread. Early identification of positive cases in long-term care facilities and voluntary vaccination of staff and residents allows the state to implement immediate action to control outbreaks and avoid the loss of life.

Therefore, this emergency rule establishes a requirement that assisted living facilities allow the Florida Department of Health or its authorized agents, CVS Health or Walgreen Co., or other vaccination-approved pharmacies, entry into the facility for purposes of voluntary COVID-19 vaccinations of facility staff and residents.

Prompt implementation of this rule is necessary to ensure the health, safety and welfare of residents and staff in Florida’s assisted living facilities.

REASON FOR CONCLUDING THAT THE PROCEDURE IS FAIR UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES: The procedure used to adopt this emergency rule is fair as the State of Florida is under a declaration of emergency due to the outbreak of COVID-19. This emergency rule is necessary and fair to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the facility residents, and provides at least the procedural protection given by other statutes, the State Constitution, or the United States Constitution; and takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency procedure.

SUMMARY: This Emergency Rule establishes a requirement for all assisted living facilities to allow the Florida Department of Health or its authorized agents, CVS Health or Walgreen Co., or other vaccination-approved pharmacies entry into the facility for purposes of voluntary COVID-19 vaccinations of facility staff and residents.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE EMERGENCY RULE IS: Kimberly Stewart, Agency for Health Care Administration, Division of Health Quality Assurance, Bureau of Health Facility Regulation, 2727 Mahan Drive, MS# 28A, Tallahassee, FL 32308, by phone at (850) 412-3492, or email at Kimberly.Stewart@ahca.myflorida.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE EMERGENCY RULE IS:

59AER20-14 Mandatory Entry to Conduct Voluntary COVID-19 Vaccinations of Assisted Living Facility Staff and Residents

(1) APPLICABILITY. The requirements of this emergency rule apply to all assisted living facilities licensed under Chapter 429, F.S.

(2) DEFINITIONS

(a) “CDC” means the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

(b) “COVID-19 Vaccination” means vaccinations provided in accordance with the CDC Pharmacy Partnership for Long-Term Care Program, or other state or federal programs, and vaccination-related follow-up.

(c) “Authorized Representative” means the Florida Department of Health or its authorized agents, CVS Health or Walgreen Co., or other vaccination-approved pharmacies.

(3) MANDATORY ENTRY TO CONDUCT COVID-19 VACCINATIONS.

(a) Assisted living facilities must enroll in the CDC Pharmacy Partnership for Long-Term Care Program online at: http://ahca.myflorida.com/COVID-19_Facilities.shtml#facility no later than 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, December 3, 2020, including completion of all required information and pharmacy selection, and facilitate arrangements for residents and staff to voluntarily receive the COVID-19 vaccine, including making off-shift staff available at the facility for vaccinations.

(b) Assisted living facilities shall allow Authorized Representatives entry into the facility for the purpose of conducting voluntary COVID-19 staff and resident vaccinations.

(4) REVOCATION OF LICENSE, FINES OR SANCTIONS. For a violation of any part of this rule, the Agency may seek any remedy authorized by Chapter 429, Part I, or Chapter 408, Part II, F.S., including but not limited to, license revocation, license suspension, and the imposition of administrative fines.

Rulemaking authority, 429.41, 408.821(4) FS, Law Implemented 429.19, 429.28, 429.41 FS.

THIS RULE TAKES EFFECT UPON BEING FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE UNLESS A LATER TIME AND DATE IS SPECIFIED IN THE RULE.
EFFECTIVE DATE: 12/1/2020

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Health Facility and Agency Licensing

RULE NO.: 59AER20-15
RULE TITLE: Mandatory Entry to Conduct Voluntary COVID-19 Vaccinations of Nursing Home Staff

SPECIFIC REASONS FOR FINDING AN IMMEDIATE DANGER TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY OR WELFARE: The Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) is a severe respiratory illness that can spread among humans through respiratory transmission. According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), people at risk for serious illness from COVID-19 include older adults and people with serious chronic medical conditions. In late 2019, a new and significant outbreak of COVID-19 emerged in China and the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a Public Health Emergency of International Concern. The CDC also confirmed community spread of COVID-19 in the United States and has issued extensive written guidance to help control the spread of COVID-19. According to the CDC, at the time of this filing, the United States has over 13,295,600 total cases and over 266,050 total deaths. Older adults are at a higher risk of developing serious complications from COVID-19. According to the United States Census Bureau, Florida has the largest percentage of residents age 65 and older in the nation.

On March 1, 2020, Governor Ron DeSantis declared a Public Health Emergency exists in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19 pursuant to Executive Order number 20-51. On March 7, 2020, the State Surgeon General and State Health Officer declared a Public Health Emergency in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19. On March 9, 2020, Florida Governor Ron DeSantis declared a state of emergency in Florida. As of the date of this filing, all counties in Florida have positive cases for COVID-19. There have been over 999,300 confirmed cases in Florida as a result of COVID-19 and over 18,500 deaths.

In guidance issued by the CDC titled Key Strategies to Prepare for COVID-19 in Long-term Care Facilities (LTCFs), the CDC directed that “[g]iven the high risk of spread once COVID-19 enters a LTCF, facilities must act immediately to protect residents, families, and staff from serious illness, complications, and death.” In order to carry out this guidance, the CDC further instructs facilities to, among other things, 1.) Keep COVID-19 from entering the facility and 2.) Identify the infection early.

Medical research shows the highly contagious COVID-19 virus can manifest as asymptomatic in positive individuals and the live, contagious coronavirus can shed at high concentrations before symptomatic development resulting in spread of the infection. Due to the congregate nature of long-term care facilities, the increased risk of transmission of COVID-19 is high. The highly transmissible nature of COVID-19 combined with the congregate nature of the long-term care facility settings and the close and personal contact that many long-term care facility staff have with the patients puts both residents and staff at a high risk of infection. Combining the high risk of long-term care facility settings with the risk posed by positive, asymptomatic staff creates a potential for sudden outbreaks in long-term care facilities.

The Department of Health and its agents, including the Agency for Health Care Administration, are working daily to respond to positive cases to avoid outbreaks at long-term care facilities. These agencies have been systematically conducting infection control investigations and testing staff and residents at nursing homes and assisted living facilities across the state to quickly identify positive cases in order to avoid viral spread and outbreaks. A single positive staff member in a facility can cause an outbreak resulting in the hospitalization and death of many vulnerable residents. If the staff member works at multiple facilities, this can result in facility-to-facility spread. Early identification of positive cases in long-term care facilities and voluntary vaccination of staff and residents allows the state to implement immediate action to control outbreaks and avoid the loss of life.

Therefore, this emergency rule establishes a requirement that nursing homes allow the Florida Department of Health or its authorized agents, CVS Health or Walgreen Co., or other vaccination-approved pharmacies entry into the facility for purposes of voluntary COVID-19 vaccinations of facility staff and residents.

Prompt implementation of this rule is necessary to ensure the health, safety and welfare of residents and staff in Florida's nursing homes.

REASON FOR CONCLUDING THAT THE PROCEDURE IS FAIR UNDER THE CIRCUMSTANCES: The procedure used to adopt this emergency rule is fair as the State of Florida is under a declaration of emergency due to the outbreak of COVID-19. This emergency rule is necessary and fair to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the facility residents, and provides at least the procedural protection given by other statutes, the State Constitution, or the United States Constitution; and takes only that action necessary to protect the public interest under the emergency procedure.

SUMMARY: This Emergency Rule establishes a requirement for all nursing homes to allow the Florida Department of Health or its authorized agents, CVS Health or Walgreen Co., or other vaccination-approved pharmacies entry into the facility for purposes of voluntary COVID-19 vaccinations of facility staff and residents.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE EMERGENCY RULE IS: Kimberly Stewart, Agency for Health Care Administration, Division of Health Quality Assurance, Bureau of Health Facility Regulation, 2727 Mahan Drive, MS# 28A, Tallahassee, FL 32308, by phone at (850) 412-3492, or email at Kimberly.Stewart@ahca.myflorida.com.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE EMERGENCY RULE IS:

59AER20-15, Mandatory Entry to Conduct Voluntary COVID-19 Vaccinations of Nursing Home Staff and Residents

(1) APPLICABILITY. The requirements of this emergency rule apply to all nursing homes licensed under Chapter 400, F.S.

(2) DEFINITIONS

(a) "CDC" means the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

(b) "COVID-19 Vaccination" means vaccinations provided in accordance with the CDC Pharmacy Partnership for Long-Term Care Program, or other state or federal programs, and vaccination-related follow-up.

(c) "Authorized Representative" means the Florida Department of Health or its authorized agents, CVS Health or Walgreen Co., or other vaccination-approved pharmacies.

(3) MANDATORY ENTRY TO CONDUCT COVID-19 VACCINATIONS.

(a) Nursing homes must enroll in the CDC Pharmacy Partnership for Long-Term Care Program online at: http://ahca.myflorida.com/COVID-19_Facilities.shtml#facility no later than 11:59 p.m. on Thursday, December 3, 2020, including completion of all required information and pharmacy selection, and facilitate arrangements for residents and staff to voluntarily receive the COVID-19 vaccine, including making off-shift staff available at the facility for vaccinations.

(b) Nursing homes shall allow Authorized Representatives entry into the facility for the purpose of conducting voluntary COVID-19 staff and resident vaccinations.

(4) REVOCATION OF LICENSE, FINES OR SANCTIONS. For a violation of any part of this rule, the Agency may seek any remedy authorized by Chapter 400, Part II, or Chapter 408, Part II, F.S., including but not limited to, license revocation, license suspension, and the imposition of administrative fines.

Rulemaking authority, 400.23, 408.819, 408.821, FS, Law Implemented 400.022, 400.23, 408.819, FS

THIS RULE TAKES EFFECT UPON BEING FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE UNLESS A LATER TIME AND DATE IS SPECIFIED IN THE RULE.

EFFECTIVE DATE: 12/1/2020

Section V

Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Southwest Florida Water Management District

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

40D-22.201 Year-Round Water Conservation Measures

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on December 1, 2020, the Southwest Florida Water Management District, received a petition for a variance or waiver.

Petitioner’s Name: Hillsborough County Water Resource Department

Rule No.: 40D-22.201

Nature of the rule for which variance or waiver is sought: Lawn and landscape irrigation

The Petition has been assigned tracking No. 21-4328.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Michael Bench, 7601 US Highway 301, Tampa, Florida 33637, 1(813)985-7481 x. 2298, water.variances@watermatters.org. (J2020071).

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of Funeral, Cemetery, and Consumer Services

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

69K-18.004 Intern Training Agencies.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on November 6, 2020, the Division of Funeral, Cemetery, and Consumer Services, Department of Financial Services, received a petition for waiver of certain requirements of subsection 69K-18.004(3), FAC. The petitions were filed on behalf of DCN Trade Services, LLC (DCN), which is acquiring a funeral establishment that is currently a training agency. DCN seeks a waiver such that the number of cases done by the prior owner of the funeral establishment should count against the requirement of the cited rule, so that the training agency status of the funeral establishment may be continued, thus preventing the imposition of serious hardship to the interns currently training at the said funeral establishment.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Jasmin Richardson at (850)413-3039.

Section VI

Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The Florida State Fair Authority Board Executive Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: via Zoom Meeting ID: 949 5069 6095 or in person at the Florida State Fairgrounds 4800 N. US Highway 301 Tampa, Florida 33610

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Quarterly meeting to conduct general business of the Florida State Fair.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The Florida State Fair Authority Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: via Zoom Meeting ID: 925 1327 8356 or in person at the Florida State Fairgrounds 4800 N US Highway 301 Tampa, Florida 33610.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Quarterly meeting to conduct the general business of the Florida State Fair.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405. If you are

hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The Florida State Fair Authority Board Executive Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 17, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: via Zoom Meeting ID: 956 8112 6017 or in person at the Florida State Fairgrounds 4800 N US Highway 301 Tampa, Florida 33610

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Quarterly meeting to conduct general business of the Florida State Fair.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)6633405.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

The Florida State Fair Authority Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 17, 2020, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: via Zoom Meeting ID: 915 4884 8554 or in person at the Florida State Fairgrounds 4800 N US Highway 301 Tampa, FL 33610

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Quarterly meeting to conduct general business of the Florida State Fair.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 24 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the

Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Cynthia Burgos at 1(813)663-3405.

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

The Criminal and Juvenile Justice Information Systems (CJJIS) Council announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, December 15, 2020, 3:00 p.m. ET

PLACE: Conference Call

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The CJJIS Council will discuss the following topics: Florida Incident-Based Reporting System, Use of Force, Criminal Justice Data Transparency, Uniform Arrest Affidavit, Uniform Statute Table, Biometric Identification Solution, and the Office of the State Courts Administrator Livescan Grant.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: CJJISCouncil@fdle.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: CJJISCouncil@fdle.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: CJJISCouncil@fdle.state.fl.us.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Sales and Use Tax

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

12A-19.100 Public Use Forms

The Department of Revenue announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: 2450 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Building 1, Room 2503, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

SPECIAL COVID-19 CONSIDERATIONS: The Governor of the State of Florida has declared a state of emergency due to the COVID-19 pandemic. To minimize exposure to COVID-19 and help protect visitors and employees, Department offices are temporarily closed to the public. If Department offices remain closed to the public at the time of this hearing due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the hearing will take place using electronic media. Anyone wishing to participate in this public hearing must register at <https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/3854183391117320975>. Additional updates, including any potential developments regarding the closure status of Department offices, may be

found on the Department's website at: <http://floridarevenue.com/rules/>.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This hearing is being conducted to document changes to rates found on Form DR-700016, Florida Communications Services Tax Return, incorporated in Rule 12A-19.100, F.A.C. Notification of these changes was provided to the Department after the publication of the Notice of Proposed Rule on October 19, 2020. A Notice of Change detailing the rate changes will be published after the conclusion of the hearing.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Danielle Boudreaux at (850)717-7082, email: RuleComments@floridarevenue.com, or at <http://floridarevenue.com/rules/>.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Tonya Fulford at (850)717-6799. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Danielle Boudreaux at (850)717-0782 or email: RuleComments@floridarevenue.com.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Florida Department of Transportation announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 1:30 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. ET

PLACE: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/519574061>
You can also dial in using your phone. United States: (669)224-3412, Access Code: 519-574-061

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: #9 FTP Steering Committee meeting of the FTP Vision and Policy Element update cycle. We will provide an update on the public comment period and on input from FDOT Executive Leadership, finalize the FTP Policy Element, discuss the Implementation Element approach, and review the charge of the committee for the upcoming year.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Dana Reiding, (850)414-4719.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Paula San Gregorio, (850)414-4811. Public Participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, sex religion, disability or family status. Persons who require special accommodations under the Americans with

Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should contact Paula San Gregorio at (850)414-4811 at least seven days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

The Florida Commission on Hurricane Loss Projection Methodology announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, December 10, 2020, 9:00 a.m. ET until conclusion of meeting

PLACE: To attend this virtual meeting, register at the Commission website, www.sbafla.com/methodology.

Persons wishing to listen by telephone may dial (562)247-8422, Participant Code 335-652-430.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Commission will review a computer flood model submitted under the Commission's 2017 flood standards and acceptability process. The Commission will discuss and adopt remote review procedures. In addition, other general business of the Commission may be addressed. A portion of the meeting will be closed from 10:15 a.m. – 12:15 p.m., as provided in paragraph 627.0628(3)(g), Florida Statutes.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Heidi Hinz, Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund, P.O. Drawer 13300, Tallahassee, FL 32317-3300, heidi.hinz@sbafla.com, (850)413-1332.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Heidi Hinz at the number or email listed above. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

FLORIDA COMMISSION ON OFFENDER REVIEW

The Florida Commission on Offender Review announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, December 22, 2020, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: There will be no in person Commission meeting. The meeting will be held via conference call. To participate in the meeting, call United States (Toll Free): 1(877)309-2073 or United States: (571)317-3129 and dial access code 337-350-165. For questions and correspondence from inmate supporters, please email inmatessupporter@fcor.state.fl.us. For questions and correspondence regarding victims' rights, please email victimquestions@fcor.state.fl.us.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regularly scheduled meeting for all Conditional Medical Release cases.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Commission on Offender Review, (850)488-1293.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Florida Commission on Offender Review at ada@fcor.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

North Central Florida Regional Planning Council
The North Central Florida Regional Planning Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.
DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 7:00 p.m.
PLACE: Virtual Meeting via Communications Media Technology
To join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/528878005>
DIAL IN NUMBER: Toll free: 1(866)899-4679, ACCESS CODE: 528 878 005

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the North Central Florida Regional Planning Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 NW 67th Place, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 business days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (352)955-2200. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

North Central Florida Regional Planning Council
The North Central Florida Regional Planning Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.
DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Virtual Meeting via Communications Media Technology

The meeting will be conducted via communications media technology in the following format:

DIAL IN NUMBER: Toll free: 1(888)585-9008, CONFERENCE CODE: 568 124 316

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the Executive Committee of the North Central Florida Regional Planning Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 NW 67th Place, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 business days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (352)955-2200. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

North Central Florida Regional Planning Council
The North Central Florida Regional Planning Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.
DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: Virtual Meeting via Communications Media Technology
The meeting will be conducted via communications media technology in the following format:

DIAL IN NUMBER: Toll free 1(888)585-9008, CONFERENCE CODE: 381 777 570

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the regular business of the Clearinghouse Committee of the North Central Florida Regional Planning Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 NW 67th Place, Gainesville, Florida 32653-1603.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 business days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (352)955-2200. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

SPACE FLORIDA

The Space Florida announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 15, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: TELECONFERENCE: Dial: 1(866)528-2256 Access Code: 4875556

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
Space Florida Audit & Accountability Committee Meeting

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241.

SPACE FLORIDA

The Space Florida announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 16, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: TELECONFERENCE: Dial: 1(866)528-2256, Access Code: 4875556

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
Space Florida Investment Committee Meeting

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing,

he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241.

SPACE FLORIDA

The Space Florida announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: January 14, 2021, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: TELECONFERENCE: Dial: 1(866)528-2256 Access Code: 4875556

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
Space Florida Board of Directors Meeting

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Elizabeth Loving at eloving@spaceflorida.gov or (321)730-5301 x241.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Office on Homelessness

The Office on Homelessness announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, December 10, 2020, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: <https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/761809237>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
COUNCIL ON HOMELESSNESS QUARTERLY COUNCIL

CALL. This conference call will address the committees' continued development of policy recommendations and work tasks to address the Council's Annual Report on recommendations to end homelessness in Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Tera Bivens, Contracted Programs, Chief, ESS, Office of Policy and Programs, (850)922-4691 or Tera.bivens@myflfamilies.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Tera Bivens, Contracted Programs, Chief, ESS,

Office of Policy and Programs, (850)922-4691 or Tera.bivens@myflfamilies.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice). For more information, you may contact: Tera Bivens, Contracted Programs, Chief, ESS, Office of Policy and Programs, (850)922-4691 or Tera.bivens@myflfamilies.com.

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

The Division of Community Development announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 15, 2020, 3:00 p.m. Eastern Time

PLACE: Join via web
 at:https://teams.microsoft.com/dl/launcher/launcher.html?url=%2F_%23%2F1%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%3Ameeting_Mml2NDM2MTUtNDU3ZS00NzU5LThlYjEtOWJhOGYzYTczNjgy%40thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontent%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%2522931da019-f64e-4908-b0f6-92f46f78c512%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%25225b4a891-3864-434f-81d8-baf0d2c2abda%2522%252c%2522IsBroadcastMeeting%2522%253a%2522%252d%26anon%3Dtrue&type=meetup-join&deeplinkId=d091a00f-286b-4e56-bf1c-7546af757f51&directDI=true&msLaunch=true&enableMobilePage=true&suppressPrompt=true
 or via telephone at: (850)988-5144, Conference ID: 143 985 082.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: In September 2020, the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), in cooperation with other agencies, began preparing the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) and Performance and Evaluation Reports (PERs) for Federal Fiscal Year 2019, as required by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Performance reports must be prepared in accordance with the instructions found in 24 CFR 91.520.

The HUD-funded programs covered in the report are the Florida Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG) administered by the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, the Emergency Solutions Grant Program (ESG) administered by the Florida Department of Children and Families, the Housing Opportunities for Persons With AIDS Program (HOPWA) administered by the Florida Department of Health, the Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME), and the Housing Trust Fund (HTF) administered by the Florida Housing Finance Corporation. This annual report, prepared according to HUD guidelines, consists of detailed information on grants made to eligible local governments or other awards to eligible entities.

On December 3, 2020, the 15-day comment period will begin and a copy of the draft report will be posted on DEO’s website at: www.FloridaJobs.org/AnnualActionPlan. The deadline for the consideration of written comments and/or suggestions is December 18, 2020, 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time. Comments may be addressed to DEO at the address below. Interested citizens may also offer oral comments at the public hearing on December 15, 2020, 3:00 p.m., Eastern Time. Comments on the report may be submitted in writing to: Florida Small Cities CDBG Program, Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, 107 East Madison Street, MSC-400, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-6508 or via email to CDBG@deo.myflorida.com.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Small Cities CDBG, (850)717-8405 or CDBG@deo.myflorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Florida Small Cities CDBG, (850)717-8405 or CDBG@deo.myflorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Florida Small Cities CDBG, (850)717-8405 or CDBG@deo.myflorida.com.

FLORIDA ATLANTIC RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The Florida Atlantic Research and Development Authority announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 16, 2020, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Zoom Meeting

<https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9626449236?pwd=SVNTTTRrNIZSeStCNTZqVURXZXNUUT09>

Meeting ID 962 644 9236, Password FARDA

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Authority Meeting

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: jwales@research-park.org.

QCAUSA

The Florida Department of Transportation announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, December 8, 2020, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Virtual and In-Person Location, Bay Shore Baptist Church, 305 N Manhattan Ave, Tampa, FL 33609

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), District Seven, invites you to attend and participate in a Virtual Public Hearing (VPH) for proposed median modifications along SR 60

(Kennedy Boulevard) from West Shore Boulevard to Woodlynne Avenue in Tampa, FL, FPN: 437644-1-52-01.

Medians are proposed to be closed at: Renellie Drive, Cooper Place, Lauber Way, Krental Avenue, Hale Avenue, Beverly Avenue, Bradford Avenue

Medians are proposed to be modified to provide left turns from Kennedy Boulevard to: Hesperides Street, Clark Avenue, Sterling Avenue, Grady Avenue.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lori Buck, Lori.Buck@dot.state.fl.us or (727)224-0511.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least Seven(7) days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Alex Henry, District Public Involvement Coordinator at 1(813)975-6405 or Alex.Henry@dot.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Kara Van Etten, P.E., Design Project Manager, kara.vanetten@dot.state.fl.us or 1(813)975-6405.

ATKINS - LAKE CITY

The Department of Transportation District 2 announces a hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 10, 2020, 4:30 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: FDOT Jacksonville Urban Office Training Center, 2198 Edison Avenue, Jacksonville, FL 32204; online at nlroads.com/VPH; by phone at (415)655-0052, access code 821-654-882.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Rise: A Real Estate Co. plans to build a 260-unit apartment community on 8.98 acres at 12375, 12387 and 12421 San Jose Boulevard. In order to maintain safe and efficient traffic flow at the location, FDOT proposes converting the existing full median opening at San Jose Boulevard and Mandarin Meadows Drive into a directional median opening. If approved, construction on the median modifications is expected to begin in May 2020.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Julian McKinley P.E., Maintenance Program Engineer, via email at julian.mckinley@dot.state.fl.us or traditional mail at 2198 Edison Avenue, Jacksonville, FL 32204.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by

contacting: Sara Pleasants at sara.pleasants@dot.state.fl.us or (904)831-FDOT. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

**Section VII
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Declaratory Statements**

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida has received the petition for declaratory statement from William Hall, In Re: The Towers Condominium Association, Inc., Docket No. 2020038257The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of section 718.111(12)(g)(2)k., F.S. and section 718.111(12)(g)(2)l as it applies to the petitioner.

Whether meeting minutes listed to be approved at a unit owner meeting are considered documents as specified in section 718.111(12)(g)(2)k., F.S. and section 718.111(12)(g)(2)l.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1030, (850)488-1631, lscmhpublicrecords@myfloridalicense.com.

Please refer all comments to: James Richardson, Chief Attorney, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Department of Business and Professional Regulation, State of Florida has declined to rule on the petition for declaratory statement filed by Palma Del Mar Condominium Association No.2 Of. St Petersburg, Inc. on March 16, 2020. The following is a summary of the agency's declination of the petition: The Petitioner has not described its particular set of facts in

sufficient detail for the Division to make the same detailed, fact-based analysis of the issue at hand.

A copy of the Order Declining of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1030, (850)488-1631, lscmhpublicrecords@myfloridalicense.com.

Section VIII
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

ERNESTO GONZALEZ Petitioner, vs. DIVISION OF HUNTING AND GAME MANAGEMENT, FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION, Respondent. CASE NO.: 20-4051RX; RULE NO.: 68A-15.004; Valid

Section IX
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee

NONE

Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
RFP 10675 – DJJ RFP 10675 – Prevention Mental Health Services

“RFP 10675 – The Department seeks proposals to provide mental health services to at-risk youth between the ages of five and seventeen (17) that include but are not limited to: individual, group, suicide prevention and/or family counseling services through integrated mental health/substance abuse evaluation and treatment services. Services shall be implemented by August 21, 2021 as specified in Attachment A of the RFP. All public meetings for this RFP are advertised on the Vendor Bid System at:”

https://www.myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs_www.ad_r2.view_ad?advertisement_key_num=155793

EARLY LEARNING COALITION OF NORTHWEST FLORIDA, INC.

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (“RFP”)-INDOOR LEARNING MATERIALS #ELCNWF OK 2020-02

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (“RFP”)-CURRICULUM SUPPLIES #ELCNWF OK 2020-01

The Early Learning Coalition of Northwest Florida, Inc. (“Coalition”), is announcing its interest in procuring a contract for Indoor Learning Environment Materials. The Request for Proposals (RFP) package will be available by December 3, 2020 on the Coalition’s website, www.elcnwf.org. This RFP Sponsored by the Early Learning Coalition of Northwest Florida and the State of Florida, Office of Early Learning, 100% funded by the U.S. Health and Human Services Child Care Disaster Fund.

Section XII
Miscellaneous

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraph 120.55(1)(b)6. – 7., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Thursday, November 26, 2020 and 3:00 p.m., Wednesday, December 2, 2020.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
6A-1.001	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
6A-1.004	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
6A-1.0071	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
6A-1.094121	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
6A-1.094122	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
6A-1.094123	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
6A-1.094124	12/2/2020	12/22/2020

6A-1.09961	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
6N-1.008	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
59AER20-14	12/1/2020	12/1/2020
59AER20-15	12/1/2020	12/1/2020
61G1-24.001	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
61G5-22.002	12/1/2020	12/21/2020
61G5-22.003	12/1/2020	12/21/2020
61G5-22.015	12/1/2020	12/21/2020
61G5-22.016	12/1/2020	12/21/2020
61G5-22.017	12/1/2020	12/21/2020
61J2-2.027	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
61J2-3.008	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
61J2-3.009	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
61J2-3.011	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
61J2-5.014	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
61J2-5.018	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
61J2-10.023	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
61J2-10.030	12/2/2020	12/22/2020
64B13-4.004	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
64B13-4.007	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
61G16-1.0071	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
61G16-6.006	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
64B12-8.020	12/1/2020	12/21/2020
64B12-15.001	12/1/2020	12/21/2020
64B16-26.300	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
64B16-26.301	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
64B19-11.0035	11/30/2020	12/20/2020
LIST OF RULES AWAITING EPA APPROVAL PURSUANT TO SECTION 373.4146 (2), FLORIDA STATUTES		
Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
62-330.010	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-330.050	6/26/2020	**/**/****

62-330.060	6/26/2020	**/**/****
62-330.090	6/26/2020	**/**/****
62-330.201	6/26/2020	**/**/****
62-330.340	6/26/2020	**/**/****
62-330.402	6/26/2020	**/**/****
62-331.010	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.020	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.030	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.040	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.050	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.051	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.052	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.053	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.054	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.060	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.070	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.080	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.090	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.100	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.110	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.120	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.130	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.140	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.160	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.200	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.201	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.210	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.211	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.212	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.213	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.214	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.215	7/21/2020	**/**/****

62-331.216	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.217	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.218	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.219	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.220	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.221	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.222	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.223	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.224	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.225	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.226	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.227	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.228	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.229	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.230	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.231	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.233	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.234	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.235	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.236	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.237	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.238	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.239	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.240	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.241	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.242	7/21/2020	**/**/****
62-331.243	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.244	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.245	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.246	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.247	6/11/2020	**/**/****
62-331.248	7/21/2020	**/**/****

LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES		
Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
60FF1-5.009	7/21/2016	**/**/****
60P-1.003	11/5/2019	**/**/****
60P-2.002	11/5/2019	**/**/****
60P-2.003	11/5/2019	**/**/****
64B8-10.003	12/9/2015	**/**/****

Section XIII
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.